






BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING 

June 5, 2023 

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BOARD MEETING DON STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
JUNE 5, 2023 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET
6:00 P.M.

AGENDA

A. Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection.

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Showcase - Recognition of Students

E. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only. 
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

F. Routine Matters
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – May 15, 2023
2. *Approval of Bills and receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File

G. Information Items
1. Superintendent’s Comments
2. Board Comments/Announcements

H. Unfinished Business - None

I. New Business
1. Approval of Rule 2100.12: Administration - Executive Director of Assessment
2. Approval of Rule 2100.13: Administration - Executive Director of Activities, Athletics and External Engagement
3. Approval of Rule 2100.23: Administration - Director for Strategic Projects and External Affairs
4. Approval of Rule 6315.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Millard Education Program- Use of 

Assessment Data
5. Approval of Rule 6320.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Students: Requirements for Senior High School 

Graduation
6. Approval of 2023-24 High School Calendars
7. Approval of Personnel Actions: Recommendation to Hire
8. Executive Session - Superintendent Evaluation

J. Reports
1. Enrollment Report - May 19, 2023
2. Food Service Report
3. Legislative Report

1

2

https://drive.google.com/file/d/15UHNO7S4WnMkJlxH2FHxPNOs1sJ1snhB/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AJIDo68LDAm54exDefYuAJ-0jcQmFRr1/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ypnVMinA8-NtbJBCA8hWqb1Bpro-YxEb/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Hu2oj7-c-e69oDnTosTzNxWw9lqpxl0z/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-TFXg3lokQnPE1HufBw5lGqhCzbcnWRC/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Dzich4kdh75_Sc7zsMbOiOb53U8MA-9J/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VqEKzeAGGZ4V7oYoaQQtTuF4ONOwB_wQ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VqEKzeAGGZ4V7oYoaQQtTuF4ONOwB_wQ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Zv8S6byNXucfbpydBgzTQ8mdLVG-U3DY/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Zv8S6byNXucfbpydBgzTQ8mdLVG-U3DY/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/167zaDr40eNifbbC3eFEhT06z3bOIwYcR/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1j5XAQhdiZ4llA7LYezc2MQBWVnroRxvQ/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1yRVUojrBSk09imV_29IRhsHOKRZTUQao/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1tzeaNvStkVFaABlrYpKufGuxoB1GQQBy/view?usp=share_link


K. Future Agenda Items/ Board Calendar
1. Foundation Golf Tournament - Thursday, June 8, 2023 at 11:30 a.m. shotgun start at Tiburon Golf Club
2. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 12, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 10, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
4. New Staff Luncheon on Monday, July 31, 2023 at 11:45am at Millard North High School.
5. Thursday, August 10, 2023 - First Day of School for Students
6. Monday, August 14, 2023 - Committee of the Whole - 6:00 p.m. at DSAC
7. Monday, August 21, 2023 - Board of Education Meeting - 6:00 p.m. at DSAC

L. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

M. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion. Items may
be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

2

3

https://drive.google.com/file/d/15UHNO7S4WnMkJlxH2FHxPNOs1sJ1snhB/view?usp=sharing


BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BOARD MEETING DON STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
JUNE 05, 2023 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET
6:00 P.M.

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM

A. Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection.

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Showcase - Recognition of Students

E. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

F.1* Motion by _________, seconded by _________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes from May 15, 2023.

F.2* Approval of Bills and receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File.

G.1 Superintendent’s Comments

G.2 Board Comments/Announcements

H.1 Unfinished Business - None

I.1 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve Rule 2100.12: Administration - Executive Director of
Assessment.

I.2 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve Rule 2100.13: Administration - Executive Director of
Activities, Athletics and External Engagement.

I.3 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve Rule 2100.23: Administration - Director for Strategic
Projects and External Affairs.

I.4 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve Rule 6315.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment-
Millard Education Program- Use of Assessment Data.

I.5 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve Rule 6320.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment-
Students: Requirements for Senior High School Graduation.

I.6 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve the 2023-24 High School Calendars.

1

4



I.7 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve Personnel Actions: Recommendation to Hire.

I.8 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to go into Executive Session at ____p.m. for the purpose of
Superintendent Evaluation for the protection of the public’s interest.

J. Reports
1. Enrollment Report - May 19, 2023
2. Food Service Report
3. Legislative Report

K. Future Agenda Items/ Board Calendar
1. Foundation Golf Tournament - Thursday, June 8, 2023 at 11:30 a.m. shotgun start at Tiburon Golf Club
2. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 12, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 10, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
4. New Staff Luncheon on Monday, July 31, 2023 at 11:45am at Millard North High School.
5. Thursday, August 10, 2023 - First Day of School for Students
6. Monday, August 14, 2023 - Committee of the Whole - 6:00 p.m. at DSAC
7. Monday, August 21, 2023 - Board of Education Meeting - 6:00 p.m. at DSAC

L. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

M. Adjournment
All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion. Items may
be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

2

5



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17

A meeting of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the county of Douglas in the state of Nebraska was
convened in open and public session at 6:00 p.m., Monday, May 15, 2023, at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606
South 147th Street.

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on Friday, May 12, 2023 a copy of
the publication is being attached to these minutes. Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the Board of
Education and a copy of their Acknowledgement of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes.
Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this meeting.
All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the public.

President Amanda McGill Johnson announced that the open meeting laws are posted and available for public inspection and
asked everyone to join in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll call was taken. Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Schoenberger, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate and Mrs. Jolley were
present.

The Student Showcase highlighted the following:
Millard North High School - World Language, Presidential Scholars, Scholastic State Art, SkillsUSA, HOSA, Debate,
Forensics
Millard South High School - Presidential Scholars, Drama, Debate, Forensics
Millard West High School - Journalism, FCCLA, HOSA, Drama, Forensics

Mrs. McGill Johnson announced this is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only. There were
no requests to speak on agenda items.

Motion was made by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the Board of Education minutes for May 1, 2023,
and approve the bills and receive the treasurer’s report and place on file. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs.
Schoenberger, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mrs. Jolley, and Mr. Kennedy. Voting against were: None. Motion
carried.

Superintendent’s Comments:
Dr. Schwartz highlighted some of the amazing celebrations of our 1800+ graduates. Dr. Schwartz said that over 140 Millard
South students received this associate's degree from Metropolitan Community College as part of the early college program.
Dr. Schwartz said both of the State’s Presidential Scholars were from Millard North, which is an extremely rare occurrence.
Dr. Schwartz said that the first cohort of Millard West AP Capstone students will graduate this year. Dr. Schwartz also said
we are excited for all of the end of the year festivities.

Board Comments:

Mrs. Jolley: None

Mr. Pate:
Mr. Pate thanked the Millard Public Schools Foundation for sponsoring the Employee Recognition Dinner. He said it was a
great event.

Mr. Pate shared his concern with a recent Metropolitan Omaha Educational Consortium (MOEC) letter where they are listed
as an organization who took a position in opposition of LB574 and LB575. Mr. Pate said that Millard Public Schools has
never taken a position on these bills. Mr. Pate was approached by two senators regarding the position taken by MOEC and he
feels that Millard is guilty by association since we are part of MOEC. Mr. Pate said that this is troubling. Mr. Pate shared the
information that Dr. Schwartz provided the board after he researched the issue, which was that legislative topics are not the
focal point of MOEC's work. The focus is on collective impact around issues like improving math, reading, pre-K services,
student attendance, staff recruitment and retention, etc. Rarely do legislative topics come up in MOEC meetings, and LB
574/575 has never been part of a MOEC conversation nor has MOEC taken a position on any legislative bill that Dr.
Schwartz is aware of. Mr. Pate said that he wants to go on record regarding what has happened concerning this situation. Mr.

1

6



Pate also said that he suggests that the district evaluate our association/partnership with MOEC. Mr. Pate also named the
different organizations involved with MOEC.

President McGill Johnson asked Dr. Schwartz if he wanted to further comment on what he learned after Mr. Pate’s comments.

Dr. Schwartz shared that the organization (MOEC) has not taken a position on the legislation. A member
who was a non-school district employee signed on to the letter as to what they thought was their capacity as an individual.
This individual did not intend to speak for the organization of MOEC. Having this person sign on to this letter was
interpreted to mean that MOEC signed on as well. Dr. Schwartz indicated that he, nor any of the other superintendents on
MOEC, were aware that the letter was out there until Mr. Pate shared it with him. As far as the MOEC organization is
concerned, they have taken no position on this bill nor any other bill during this legislative session.

Mrs. McGill Johnson:
Mrs. McGill Johnson hopes the MOEC incident is used as a training opportunity for their organization.

Mrs. Poole:
Mrs. Poole that the Millard Public Schools Foundation for sponsoring the Employee Recognition Dinner. Mrs. Poole also
thanked the Foundation for the amazing student scholarship event. Mrs. Poole thanked the entire staff and all the students for
a fabulous year and she doesn’t think it could have gone any better.

Mrs. Lisa Schoenberger:
Mrs. Schoenberger shared that this was the first Employee Recognition Dinner she has attended and it was an incredible
experience. She also shared that May is full of all sorts of transitions such as graduation, retirements, kindergarten round ups,
and the beginning of new eras.

Mr. Kennedy:
Mr. Kennedy said he too had a great time at the Employee Recognition Dinner. Mr. Kennedy congratulated Joe Vonderhaar,
and Katie Holt on their new positions. Mr. Kennedy said that all the students honored here tonight show all the great things
we are doing in public education. Mr. Kennedy said that many districts have issues across the state with things like
transparency. Mr. Kennedy believes we need to work as a community to address some of the state wide issues.

Unfinished Business: None

New Business:
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Stacy Jolley, to approve Joseph Vonderhaar as the Director of Professional Learning.
Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Kennedy, and Mrs.
Schoenberger. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Mike Kennedy, to approve Katherine Holt as the Principal at Sandoz Elementary
School. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Schoenberger,
and Mrs. Poole. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Stacy Jolley, to reaffirm Policy 4410: Human Resources - Employee Identification
Badge. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Pate, Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Schoenberger, Mrs. Poole, and Mrs.
McGill Johnson. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve Rule 4410.1: Human Resources - Employee Identification
Badge. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Schoenberger, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson,
and Mr. Pate. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Mike Kennedy, to reaffirm Policy 8360: Internal Board Policies - Photo Identification
Badges. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Schoenberger, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate
and Mrs. Jolley. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

2

7



Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Linda Poole, that the Negotiated Agreement for the Paraprofessionals with the
Educational Paraprofessionals Association of Millard for the 2023-24 school year be approved and that the Superintendent or
his designee be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such Agreement. Voting in favor of said motion was:
Mrs. Schoenberger, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mrs. Jolley, and Mr. Kennedy. Voting against were: None.
Motion carried.

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Stacy Jolley, to approve the Instructional Hours for Elementary and Middle Schools.
Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. Poole, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Kennedy, and Mrs.
Schoenberger. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the 2023 High School Graduates. Voting in favor of said
motion was: Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Schoenberger, and Mrs. Poole. Voting against
were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve Personnel Actions: Recommendation to Hire:Amanda M.
Roesener, Alexis C. Berney, Brooke D. Roach, Megan E. Kennedy, Hannah A. Wojtas, Shay N. Tiark, Caleb E. Harthoorn,
Abigail M. Berthold, Julie A. Milks, Marie C. Rodriguez, Gretta N. Stark, Meredith K. Clodfelder, Jay L. Vance, Brian L.
Farrell, Erin C. Kehret, Kayley E. Tinderholt, Sarah J. Kathol, Antaeus M. Hanzy; Resignation Agenda: Madeline E.
Sossi-Jones, Michelle A. Ferguson, Hayley E. Nielsen, Heather C. Passey, Scott A. Gibson, Amanda L. Benzel; Leave of
Absence: Timothy D. Royers. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Pate, Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Schoenberger,
Mrs. Poole, and Mrs. McGill Johnson. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Reports:

Committee on American Civics Report
Associate Superintendent of Educational Services Dr. Heather Phipps thanked Mr. Pate, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mrs.
Schoenberger (2nd semester), Mr. Anderson (1st semester) for serving on the committee on American Civics. As required in
the statute Dr. Phipps provided the board with an annual report on the Committee on American Civics. She said the
committee met twice this year and they completed all required statutory obligations.

Legislative Report
Executive Director of Activities, Athletics & External Affairs Chad Zimmerman provided the board with a legislative update.
Mr. Zimmerman said that tomorrow is the 78th day of the 90 day session.

Mr. Zimmerman shared that LB705 education committee package is the vehicle that the Education Committee will use to
package bills. This bill is the redistribution of lottery funds which is done every three years. Mr. Zimmerman said now there
are 24 separate measures in this package. The package is on final reading. Mr. Zimmerman highlighted the 3 bills additions
that have an input on Millard Public Schools. Mr. Zimmerman provided an update in the Governor’s school finance plan and
gave an overview of LB583, LB243, and LB681.

Mrs. McGill Johnson reminded the Board of future agenda items and said this is the proper time for public questions and
comments. James Harris of 16130 Spring St spoke on a non-agenda item.

Future Agenda Items/ Board Calendar:

1. High School Graduation on Saturday, May 27, 2023 at the Baxter Arena
MNHS at 9:00 a.m. / MSHS at 1:00 p.m. / MWHS at 5:00 p.m.

2. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 5, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
3. Foundation Golf Tournament - Thursday, June 8, 2023 at 11:30 a.m. shotgun start at Tiburon Golf Club
4. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 12, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 10, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC

Meeting was adjourned at 8:02 p.m.

3

8





Millard Public Schools 
June 05, 2023 

10



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499077  05/11/2023 108436  COX COMMUNICATIONS INC             $33.82

499078  05/11/2023 108436  COX COMMUNICATIONS INC             $422.24

499079  05/11/2023 139281  PAMELA A DUNCAN                    $240.00

499080  05/11/2023 064800  METRO UTILITIES DISTRICT OF OMAHA  $1,575.35

499081  05/11/2023 134116  STATE STEEL OF OMAHA               $1,284.61

499093  05/18/2023 140821  MARGARET E SCHWARTZ                $2,054.00

499094  05/18/2023 108436  COX COMMUNICATIONS INC             $5,718.80

499095  05/18/2023 108436  COX COMMUNICATIONS INC             $26,805.02

499099  05/18/2023 064800  METRO UTILITIES DISTRICT OF OMAHA  $53,366.56

499100  05/18/2023 068801  STATE OF NEBRASKA                  $3,554.09

499101  05/25/2023 138146  FIERCE INC                         $8,715.00

499103  05/25/2023 064800  METRO UTILITIES DISTRICT OF OMAHA  $34,645.25

499104  06/05/2023 140821  MARGARET E SCHWARTZ                $3,041.50

499105  06/05/2023 143790  360 COMMUNITY SERVICES             $5,389.51

499106  06/05/2023 136271  TROPHY GUY INC                     $137.25

499107  06/05/2023 010040  A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC      $75.00

499108  06/05/2023 143631  JIM ABT                            $255.45

499109  06/05/2023 109853  ACCESS ELEVATOR INC.               $3,200.00

499110  06/05/2023 010112  AE SUPPLY LLC                      $7,189.00

499112  06/05/2023 139362  AMANDA L AKSAMIT                   $53.51

499113  06/05/2023 133416  AKSARBEN SAW & TOOL INC            $542.90

499114  06/05/2023 137976  HALEY E ALLEN                      $30.44

499115  06/05/2023 143318  HARTIN INVESTMENTS LLC             $1,678.72

499118  06/05/2023 143146  JUNE ANALCO                        $763.75

499119  06/05/2023 143940  JOELLY A ANDERSON                  $7.86

499120  06/05/2023 131265  JILL M ANDERSON                    $86.88

499121  06/05/2023 142765  JILL R ANDERSON                    $335.00

499123  06/05/2023 143507  CALEB A ANNIN                      $1,077.00

May 30, 2023 1

11



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499124  06/05/2023 143506  ANZALONE CRUSHR LLC                $975.00

499125  06/05/2023 012989  APPLE COMPUTER INC                 $23,049.25

499126  06/05/2023 143437  KRISTIN L ASPEGREN                 $1,000.00

499127  06/05/2023 142617  CAROL B CHAMBERS                   $2,400.00

499128  06/05/2023 013890  AWARDS UNLIMITED INC.              $1,774.86

499129  06/05/2023 131981  BAIRD HOLM LLP                     $84.39

499131  06/05/2023 137482  KRISTINA A BAMESBERGER             $131.01

499132  06/05/2023 143990  KAITLYN FR BARRETT                 $20.89

499133  06/05/2023 017877  CYNTHIA L BARR-MCNAIR              $104.54

499134  06/05/2023 138305  MEAGAN L BASYE                     $104.21

499135  06/05/2023 143824  EMMA M BAUMANN                     $17.03

499136  06/05/2023 131634  MARGUERITE M BAY                   $13.10

499138  06/05/2023 135223  AARON J BEARINGER                  $52.47

499139  06/05/2023 140903  EMMA BECK                          $62.69

499140  06/05/2023 144231  NATHAN D BECKER                    $495.00

499141  06/05/2023 140706  AMY J BECKER                       $219.71

499142  06/05/2023 141521  ERIKA J BECKLEY                    $52.73

499143  06/05/2023 138255  NICOLE M BEINS                     $256.51

499144  06/05/2023 139889  DARLA G BELL                       $63.02

499145  06/05/2023 132146  BERGAN KDV LLC                     $5,000.00

499146  06/05/2023 134884  JULIE K BERGSTROM                  $300.00

499147  06/05/2023 142454  LAURA C BESHALER                   $184.83

499149  06/05/2023 143926  HOT PANS INC                       $280.00

499150  06/05/2023 134478  TIFFANY M BOCK SMITH               $111.16

499151  06/05/2023 143453  BOKF, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION         $2,600.00

499152  06/05/2023 130899  KIMBERLY M BOLAN                   $158.58

499153  06/05/2023 143520  BORSHEIMS JEWLERY COMPANY INC      $2,326.00

499154  06/05/2023 142841  BOUNDLESS NETWORK INC              $780.58

May 30, 2023 2

12



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499155  06/05/2023 139996  BOYS TOWN                          $31,764.96

499156  06/05/2023 015805  CORVUS INDUSTRIES LTD              $43,681.00

499158  06/05/2023 139947  YESENIA BRAVO                      $253.45

499160  06/05/2023 139890  DOUGLAS J BREITER                  $78.08

499161  06/05/2023 141959  EMILI L BROSNAN                    $372.90

499162  06/05/2023 143941  LYDIA J BRUCKNER                   $10.63

499163  06/05/2023 141510  CHRISTINE L BUKOWSKI               $139.25

499165  06/05/2023 143556  TRENOR J CAMPBELL                  $40.61

499166  06/05/2023 142667  COMPASS GROUP INC                  $360.29

499173  06/05/2023 143369  CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CO INC     $51,878.35

499174  06/05/2023 140320  SEAN M CARLSON                     $465.00

499176  06/05/2023 131158  CURTIS R CASE                      $364.17

499177  06/05/2023 133970  CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS           $1,718.60

499178  06/05/2023 133589  CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.               $2,192.50

499180  06/05/2023 138613  CENTRAL SALES INC                  $911.51

499182  06/05/2023 135648  SUSAN M CHADWICK                   $14.08

499183  06/05/2023 143694  TYSON J CHROMY                     $60.13

499188  06/05/2023 139202  CINTAS CORPORATION                 $1,157.07

499189  06/05/2023 143654  JEREDITH BRANDS LLC                $85,615.00

499192  06/05/2023 131135  PATRICIA A CLIFTON                 $77.81

499193  06/05/2023 136780  LISA L CLINARD                     $123.23

499194  06/05/2023 137013  NANCY S COLE                       $67.20

499195  06/05/2023 138630  CARRIER ENTERPRISE LLC             $5.98

499197  06/05/2023 144038  KAREN CONBOY                       $152.35

499198  06/05/2023 135082  OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CTRS OF NE PC  $522.00

499199  06/05/2023 136518  JANET L COOK                       $145.74

499200  06/05/2023 134861  TARA R COOPER                      $239.14

499201  06/05/2023 143248  RANA R COREY                       $40.15

May 30, 2023 3

13



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499202  06/05/2023 135992  DAVID J CORK                       $122.09

499203  06/05/2023 131210  COUNCIL BLUFFS COMMUNITY SCHOOLS   $620.55

499204  06/05/2023 144241  JOLENE R OSBORNE                   $400.00

499205  06/05/2023 143557  DANA M CROWE                       $63.73

499206  06/05/2023 106893  WICHITA WATER CONDITIONING INC     $53.70

499207  06/05/2023 027300  CUMMINS CENTRAL POWER LLC          $2,791.68

499208  06/05/2023 141898  JACOB S CURTISS                    $917.06

499209  06/05/2023 130900  CHERYL L CUSTARD                   $227.61

499210  06/05/2023 131483  JANET L DAHLGAARD                  $18.93

499211  06/05/2023 132671  JEAN T DAIGLE                      $151.96

499212  06/05/2023 131003  DAILY RECORD                       $68.40

499214  06/05/2023 106713  ANDREW S DEFREECE                  $31.96

499215  06/05/2023 032872  DENNIS SUPPLY COMPANY              $3,321.04

499216  06/05/2023 140403  ERIC T DEPUE                       $123.80

499217  06/05/2023 137331  BASTIAN DERICHS                    $46.44

499218  06/05/2023 140640  DESIGN 4 INC                       $105.00

499219  06/05/2023 138609  TONI L DIERKHISING                 $149.62

499220  06/05/2023 132669  DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC            $1,760.00

499221  06/05/2023 133268  DOCUMENT FINISHING RESOURCES INC   $2,234.00

499222  06/05/2023 143444  ELIZA R DONLEY                     $119.90

499223  06/05/2023 139349  TERRIN D DORATHY                   $34.26

499224  06/05/2023 099628  DRAMATIC PUBLISHING                $1,080.89

499227  06/05/2023 135689  SUSAN M DULANY                     $121.44

499228  06/05/2023 144236  WILLIAM C DUNCAN                   $229.00

499229  06/05/2023 102791  ERIC ARMIN INC                     $585.20

499230  06/05/2023 138426  KELLY D EALY                       $104.28

499231  06/05/2023 052370  ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO            $1,084.73

499232  06/05/2023 036830  EDITORIAL PROJECTS IN EDUCATION INC $97.00

May 30, 2023 4

14



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499233  06/05/2023 037525  EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3        $156,627.19

499234  06/05/2023 133823  REBECCA S EHRHORN                  $299.66

499235  06/05/2023 038140  ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.              $7,985.08

499236  06/05/2023 141577  ELITE PROFESSIONALS HOME CARE LLC  $15,904.00

499237  06/05/2023 131007  ELMAN & CO INC                     $81.00

499238  06/05/2023 144252  STEVEN W ERICKSON                  $60.40

499240  06/05/2023 135360  PAMELA A ERIXON                    $108.40

499241  06/05/2023 144149  SANDY G ESTEE                      $62.68

499242  06/05/2023 143301  EVANS CUSTOM APPAREL INC           $1,310.00

499243  06/05/2023 144214  EVERYDAY SPEECH LLC                $299.99

499244  06/05/2023 142827  JAMES M FEENEY III                 $534.00

499245  06/05/2023 137016  ANGELA L FERGUSON                  $53.12

499246  06/05/2023 132001  BETH L FINK                        $13.10

499247  06/05/2023 142541  FIRESPRING                         $533.45

499248  06/05/2023 130731  FIRST WIRELESS INC                 $23.28

499249  06/05/2023 142378  FIS CAPITAL MARKETS US LLC         $400.00

499250  06/05/2023 141511  JENNIFER M FITZKE                  $29.15

499251  06/05/2023 140887  RODNEY JOHNSON                     $232.00

499255  06/05/2023 143691  FOLLETT CONTENT SOLUTIONS LLC      $14,524.40

499256  06/05/2023 143464  FORMAX LLC                         $522.00

499257  06/05/2023 140494  MATTHEW J GEERTS                   $1,035.00

499259  06/05/2023 139595  GIA PUBLICATIONS INC               $117.33

499260  06/05/2023 139894  TRICIA L GILLETT                   $78.01

499261  06/05/2023 142832  GITHUB INC                         $2,500.00

499262  06/05/2023 106660  GLASSMASTERS INC                   $4,943.00

499264  06/05/2023 140776  ELLEN K GONZALES                   $99.14

499265  06/05/2023 140770  ANTONIO A GONZALEZ                 $16.99

499266  06/05/2023 136508  ERIC N GRANDGENETT                 $465.00

May 30, 2023 5

15



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499267  06/05/2023 143459  GREAT PLAINS COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING $1,396.24

499268  06/05/2023 143986  KESHIA K GREVE                     $37.68

499269  06/05/2023 135100  CENTRAL PROGRAMS INC               $1,236.90

499270  06/05/2023 132673  JULIE L HAHN                       $151.96

499271  06/05/2023 142354  KRISTYN R HAMILTON                 $41.94

499272  06/05/2023 141900  CATHERINE A HANISH                 $150.58

499273  06/05/2023 131367  AMANDA J HARTZ                     $465.00

499274  06/05/2023 142002  SARAH R HAVER                      $130.00

499275  06/05/2023 140889  DEANNA L HAYES                     $49.85

499276  06/05/2023 144237  TIMOTHY HAYNES                     $1,110.88

499277  06/05/2023 048475  HEARTLAND FOUNDATION               $10,191.50

499278  06/05/2023 048517  GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC     $1,062.50

499279  06/05/2023 102842  HELGET GAS PRODUCTS INC            $88.12

499280  06/05/2023 143746  MECHANICAL INC                     $1,251.00

499281  06/05/2023 108478  DAVID C HEMPHILL                   $239.56

499282  06/05/2023 141513  MELISSA M HENNINGS                 $162.79

499283  06/05/2023 143705  ALYSSA M HEROLD                    $125.29

499284  06/05/2023 048845  CAMILLE H HINZ                     $13.43

499285  06/05/2023 048940  HOBBY LOBBY STORES INC             $92.37

499286  06/05/2023 144113  ALLISON C HOEFT                    $12.38

499287  06/05/2023 144013  HOME AT LAST LLC                   $2,300.00

499288  06/05/2023 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $82.93

499289  06/05/2023 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $844.64

499291  06/05/2023 135658  SHAUN E HOOVER                     $47.73

499292  06/05/2023 143951  KRISTA G HOVLAND                   $96.48

499293  06/05/2023 132590  HUB INTERNATIONAL GREAT PLAINS LLC $5,654.00

499294  06/05/2023 137426  HUGHES MULCH PRODUCTS LLC          $2,560.00

499295  06/05/2023 108153  CHRISTOPHER M HUGHES               $190.00

May 30, 2023 6

16



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499296  06/05/2023 140205  JADE A HUGHES                      $77.11

499297  06/05/2023 142259  PAMELA K HUSS                      $263.50

499298  06/05/2023 144047  MARIA L HUTCHINSON                 $201.17

499299  06/05/2023 130283  KARA L HUTTON                      $32.75

499300  06/05/2023 133397  HY-VEE INC                         $4,200.35

499302  06/05/2023 143165  IMAGINE LEARNING LLC               $35,750.00

499303  06/05/2023 142672  INSTRUCTURE INC                    $5,220.00

499304  06/05/2023 140729  J F AHERN CO                       $2,542.00

499306  06/05/2023 143609  JACKSON SERVICES INC               $1,497.13

499307  06/05/2023 139763  CALVIN L JACOBS                    $14.67

499308  06/05/2023 141976  SHANNON E JANICEK                  $107.20

499309  06/05/2023 131157  CHRISTINE A JANOVEC-POEHLMAN       $110.83

499310  06/05/2023 136953  DELI MANAGEMENT INC                $664.81

499311  06/05/2023 133531  JANE E BYERS                       $840.00

499312  06/05/2023 135735  GEORGE W JELKIN                    $108.42

499314  06/05/2023 133037  JENSEN TIRE & AUTO #15             $7,873.30

499315  06/05/2023 083400  JOHNSON CONTROLS US HOLDINGS LLC   $16,920.98

499316  06/05/2023 054500  JOHNSON HARDWARE CO LLC            $2,813.00

499319  06/05/2023 135373  LINDA K JOHNSON                    $23.58

499320  06/05/2023 140228  COLIN T JOHNSTON                   $111.13

499321  06/05/2023 142890  BROOKE E JONES                     $109.65

499322  06/05/2023 108171  CANDY R JONES                      $86.39

499324  06/05/2023 142898  JUST FOR KIDS THERAPY INC          $651.75

499325  06/05/2023 136678  K C PETERSEN CONSTRUCTION CO       $4,965.00

499326  06/05/2023 137781  ANNE C KEITH                       $119.87

499327  06/05/2023 140881  DARIN C KELBERLAU                  $715.30

499328  06/05/2023 140091  KENT J KINGSTON                    $87.73

499330  06/05/2023 139753  CHERIS A KITE                      $33.86

May 30, 2023 7

17



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499331  06/05/2023 131826  ALICIA C KOTLARZ                   $507.44

499332  06/05/2023 143655  STACEY J KOZISEK                   $19.91

499333  06/05/2023 141957  MELINDA S KRAUSE                   $24.12

499334  06/05/2023 137714  BETHANY L KREAGER                  $206.00

499335  06/05/2023 143206  KUDER INC                          $1,500.00

499336  06/05/2023 141946  BETHANY S LACOSSE                  $121.83

499339  06/05/2023 138549  JARED LANGEMEIER                   $70.00

499340  06/05/2023 135257  LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES INC         $1,489.22

499343  06/05/2023 137180  LAURA P WIRTH                      $10,625.50

499344  06/05/2023 135696  CHAD D LAWTON                      $964.94

499346  06/05/2023 144239  JESSICA M LEEVER                   $256.51

499347  06/05/2023 142798  LEGENDS OF LEARNING INC            $14,400.00

499349  06/05/2023 140077  TIMOTHY J LEUSCHEN                 $45.77

499351  06/05/2023 100888  LINCOLN NORTHEAST HIGH SCHOOL      $120.00

499352  06/05/2023 133643  JODY C LINDQUIST                   $54.04

499353  06/05/2023 140948  DALE L LONG                        $58.95

499354  06/05/2023 144024  BRENT LOUDENSLAGER                 $333.45

499356  06/05/2023 137207  LEE ANN M MAASS                    $56.99

499357  06/05/2023 108106  LEANNA MACDONALD                   $3,120.00

499358  06/05/2023 142386  DEREK E MCMILLIN                   $7,945.00

499359  06/05/2023 099321  MACKIN BOOK CO                     $204.17

499360  06/05/2023 143953  JEREMY S MADSON                    $31.05

499361  06/05/2023 140184  STEPHEN P MAINELLI                 $111.94

499363  06/05/2023 137281  DMG INC                            $120.91

499364  06/05/2023 138473  KEITH W MALY                       $70.74

499368  06/05/2023 138341  MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES HOLDINGS $9,984.00

499369  06/05/2023 140507  ALEXA J MAZUR                      $229.00

499370  06/05/2023 140346  MEGAN N MCENANEY                   $96.64

May 30, 2023 8

18



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499371  06/05/2023 140110  MCGRAW HILL/MAV HOLDING CORPORATION $2,283.12

499372  06/05/2023 137014  RYE L MCINTOSH                     $92.75

499373  06/05/2023 135153  KRISTEN L MCKENNEY                 $458.40

499374  06/05/2023 141523  KELLI M MCWILLIAMS                 $34.65

499375  06/05/2023 143876  MEDBRIDGE INC                      $1,236.00

499376  06/05/2023 136470  CHAD M MEISGEIER                   $26.20

499377  06/05/2023 144250  LISA L MEISTER                     $31.83

499378  06/05/2023 139997  HAYLEY D MENTZER                   $341.20

499379  06/05/2023 064600  METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC $135.00

499380  06/05/2023 133403  AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK             $8,248.92

499381  06/05/2023 143611  VANESSA K MEYER                    $19.91

499382  06/05/2023 139339  SPORTS FACILITY MAINTENANCE LLC    $400.00

499383  06/05/2023 144040  CATELYN N MEYSENBURG               $105.26

499385  06/05/2023 131899  MIDWEST STORAGE SOLUTIONS          $403.00

499386  06/05/2023 107560  MILLARD METAL SERVICES INC.        $660.00

499388  06/05/2023 065443  MILLARD WEST HIGH SCHOOL           $135.00

499389  06/05/2023 131328  MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY            $1,161.81

499391  06/05/2023 136388  MITCHELL S MOLLRING                $1,185.11

499393  06/05/2023 143586  KRISTIN L MORGAN                   $18.00

499394  06/05/2023 140990  LAURA M MORRIS                     $215.70

499395  06/05/2023 142908  SCOTT M MORRIS                     $839.60

499397  06/05/2023 143898  EMILY C MURPHY                     $205.96

499398  06/05/2023 143163  NATIONAL ART & SCHOOL SUPPLIES INC $9,300.04

499399  06/05/2023 130548  NCS PEARSON INC                    $46,211.00

499400  06/05/2023 143817  AMERICAN STRING TEACHERS ASSN-NE   $150.00

499401  06/05/2023 139807  NEBRASKA ASSOCIATION FOR CURRICULUM $80.00

499402  06/05/2023 068415  NEBRASKA COUNCIL SCHOOL ADMIN      $880.00

499403  06/05/2023 131412  NE DEPT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES $320.00

May 30, 2023 9

19



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499404  06/05/2023 068445  NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC        $582.00

499405  06/05/2023 136532  NEBRASKA LUTHERAN OUTDR MINISTRIES $270.00

499406  06/05/2023 068467  NEBRASKA NOTARY ASSOCIATION        $135.45

499407  06/05/2023 142414  NEBRASKA SALT & GRAIN CO           $4,063.17

499408  06/05/2023 107406  NEBRASKA SPEECH COMMUNICATION      $270.00

499409  06/05/2023 134321  NEBRASKA STATE FIRE MARSHAL AGENCY $360.00

499410  06/05/2023 141558  JILL M NEELEY                      $23.19

499411  06/05/2023 107732  BRIAN L NELSON                     $980.00

499412  06/05/2023 135913  SUSAN E NELSON-KNOX                $62.80

499413  06/05/2023 144240  AMANDA J NEWBURN                   $36.89

499414  06/05/2023 144039  EMILY M NIELSEN                    $62.16

499415  06/05/2023 138136  KIMBERLY S NISSEN                  $33.13

499416  06/05/2023 142353  ASHLEY B NODGAARD                  $86.38

499417  06/05/2023 107905  MELINDA C NOLLER                   $38.78

499418  06/05/2023 135570  JONATHAN L NORD                    $597.90

499421  06/05/2023 100013  ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC         $2,288.29

499422  06/05/2023 100013  ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC         $79.96

499423  06/05/2023 070245  RICHELIEU AMERICA LTD              $3,431.21

499424  06/05/2023 132778  MELANIE L OLSON                    $23.32

499425  06/05/2023 099658  OMAHA CHILDRENS MUSEUM             $1,467.69

499428  06/05/2023 133850  ONE SOURCE                         $1,689.50

499429  06/05/2023 144248  CHARLES S ORLANDO                  $120.52

499431  06/05/2023 138662  KELLY D OSTRAND                    $130.04

499432  06/05/2023 107193  OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY              $1,378.30

499433  06/05/2023 133368  KELLY R O'TOOLE                    $41.92

499434  06/05/2023 142290  OVERDRIVE INC                      $7,916.24

499435  06/05/2023 143587  LACEY J OVERSTREET                 $29.74

499436  06/05/2023 142869  MATTHEW AARON OWEN                 $70.00

May 30, 2023 10

20



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499437  06/05/2023 134428  ELIZABETH A PACHTA                 $124.32

499438  06/05/2023 144245  ANNA E PALMESANO                   $256.51

499440  06/05/2023 137015  GEORGE M PARKER                    $118.43

499441  06/05/2023 132006  ANDREA L PARSONS                   $53.12

499442  06/05/2023 144244  KIMBERLY S PEARCE                  $200.00

499443  06/05/2023 131646  TYLER J PEARSON                    $97.10

499444  06/05/2023 107783  HEIDI T PENKE                      $39.17

499446  06/05/2023 142702  ASHLEY N PHILLIPS                  $85.72

499447  06/05/2023 133390  HEATHER C PHIPPS                   $55.56

499449  06/05/2023 073040  PITNEY BOWES PRESORT SERVICES INC  $15,000.00

499450  06/05/2023 144094  POMP'S TIRE SERVICE INC            $871.33

499451  06/05/2023 136476  JENNY R POWERS                     $37.47

499452  06/05/2023 142781  POWERSCHOOL HOLDINGS LLC           $48,623.39

499453  06/05/2023 131835  PRAIRIE MECHANICAL CORP            $1,530.05

499454  06/05/2023 139532  PREFERRED SHIPPING INC             $619.27

499455  06/05/2023 101663  PRESTWICK HOUSE INC                $609.37

499456  06/05/2023 109845  CHRISTINA PREUSS                   $17.61

499457  06/05/2023 143687  PRIME HOME DDS INC                 $15,703.50

499460  06/05/2023 102241  PYRAMID SCHOOL PRODUCTS            $20,385.87

499461  06/05/2023 142795  QUALTRICS LLC                      $21,735.00

499462  06/05/2023 078250  RALSTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS             $187,330.68

499463  06/05/2023 109810  BETHANY B RAY                      $140.30

499465  06/05/2023 078760  REGAL AWARDS INC                   $77.00

499467  06/05/2023 134858  JENNIFER L REID                    $12.84

499468  06/05/2023 143489  TYLER D RENKEN                     $16.25

499470  06/05/2023 135484  KRISTI L RICHLING                  $27.18

499471  06/05/2023 079179  RIEKES EQUIPMENT CO                $588.38

499473  06/05/2023 144070  THOMAS D RILEY                     $71.31

May 30, 2023 11

21



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499474  06/05/2023 139324  KELLY C RINEHART                   $95.87

499475  06/05/2023 144095  ERIN L ROCHE                       $222.24

499477  06/05/2023 134882  LINDA A ROHMILLER                  $36.03

499478  06/05/2023 136121  MELANIE E ROLL                     $6,435.00

499479  06/05/2023 134990  BRITTANY A ROM                     $484.42

499482  06/05/2023 142800  SARAH M ROZEBOOM                   $256.51

499483  06/05/2023 143241  MICHAEL J RUCKER                   $96.22

499484  06/05/2023 143167  SADOFF & RUDOY INDUSTRIES LLP      $220.02

499486  06/05/2023 081725  KIMBERLEY K SAUM-MILLS             $50.76

499487  06/05/2023 138484  CINDY M SCHARFF                    $1,178.71

499488  06/05/2023 135433  MONTE G SCHEEF                     $101.79

499490  06/05/2023 137012  SHELLEY L SCHMITZ                  $92.22

499491  06/05/2023 135488  SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY                $252.30

499492  06/05/2023 082336  SCHOOLMART                         $453.42

499494  06/05/2023 143695  SCHUMACHER ELEVATOR COMPANY        $3,177.50

499495  06/05/2023 143243  HANNAH D SCHUSTER                  $111.57

499496  06/05/2023 137416  NICHOLE E SCHWAB                   $34.13

499497  06/05/2023 134567  KAYE M SCHWEIGERT                  $88.23

499498  06/05/2023 109815  JENNIFER L SCOTT                   $64.58

499499  06/05/2023 139827  MATTHEW J SCOTT                    $14.02

499503  06/05/2023 143104  SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP             $229.34

499504  06/05/2023 135023  DONALD R SHIRLEY                   $545.26

499505  06/05/2023 143994  EMILY N SMITH                      $75.85

499506  06/05/2023 143266  NATHAN M SMITH                     $71.26

499508  06/05/2023 101476  SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES            $112,002.91

499510  06/05/2023 142226  MICHELLE R SOMERVILLE              $36.68

499511  06/05/2023 139805  SQUIRRELS LLC                      $5,670.00

499512  06/05/2023 141988  LINDSEY J STAACK                   $218.18

May 30, 2023 12

22



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499513  06/05/2023 144253  MATTHEW E STARKS                   $384.05

499514  06/05/2023 134116  STATE STEEL OF OMAHA               $1,199.43

499516  06/05/2023 142102  STERLING COMPUTERS CORPORATION     $817.54

499517  06/05/2023 138362  ERICA L STORMS                     $14.59

499520  06/05/2023 139843  STUDENT TRANSPORTATION NEBRASKA INC $333,695.73

499522  06/05/2023 144192  SUNBELT RENTALS INC                $3,230.70

499523  06/05/2023 144192  SUNBELT RENTALS INC                $678.45

499525  06/05/2023 141747  TANGIBLE PLAY INC                  $516.00

499528  06/05/2023 140513  ANNA M THOMA                       $395.00

499531  06/05/2023 144213  ANDREW J TLSTY                     $68.97

499532  06/05/2023 109843  T-MOBILE USA INC                   $3,936.41

499533  06/05/2023 141309  ANDREW J TOMEI                     $26.98

499534  06/05/2023 089574  TOTAL MARKETING INC                $159.00

499535  06/05/2023 143571  TAYLOR A TOYNE                     $41.97

499536  06/05/2023 137870  LINDSAY D TRAEGER                  $9.04

499537  06/05/2023 143815  TRAKREF INC                        $3,500.00

499539  06/05/2023 107719  KIMBERLY P TRISLER                 $32.88

499540  06/05/2023 106493  TRITZ PLUMBING, INC.               $5,844.33

499541  06/05/2023 142462  JEFFREY S UHER                     $540.91

499542  06/05/2023 142309  UNANIMOUS INC                      $1,980.00

499543  06/05/2023 100923  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA LINCOLN     $1,615.00

499544  06/05/2023 134231  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT KEARNEY  $100.00

499546  06/05/2023 068839  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA KEARNEY     $5,892.00

499547  06/05/2023 068875  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA MED CENTER  $10,327.46

499548  06/05/2023 068875  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA MED CENTER  $4,734.47

499549  06/05/2023 068840  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA    $10,844.40

499550  06/05/2023 139797  US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION       $1,321.00

499551  06/05/2023 140402  US OMNI & TSACG COMPLIANCE SVCS INC $702.50

May 30, 2023 13

23



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499553  06/05/2023 140504  SARAH A VALASEK                    $59.74

499554  06/05/2023 091040  VAL LTD                            $631.22

499555  06/05/2023 138046  AUTO LUBE INC                      $108.75

499556  06/05/2023 137877  SIXTO-RUEDA VASQUEZ                $64.80

499557  06/05/2023 143347  VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC         $27.69

499558  06/05/2023 143347  VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC         $11,954.78

499559  06/05/2023 083340  VERNE SIMMONDS COMPANY             $1,070.00

499561  06/05/2023 109122  CONNIE L VLCEK                     $20.63

499562  06/05/2023 140828  JOSEPH P VONDERHAAR                $110.70

499563  06/05/2023 093008  BARBARA N WALLER                   $560.00

499564  06/05/2023 131112  LINDA M WALTERS                    $70.94

499565  06/05/2023 136617  ANTHONY R WARD                     $4,560.00

499567  06/05/2023 138269  NICHOLAS J WEAVER                  $36.03

499568  06/05/2023 141464  ANTHONY J WEERS                    $53.78

499569  06/05/2023 131717  DIANE M WEIER                      $7.21

499570  06/05/2023 093989  DIANA L WEIS                       $32.10

499571  06/05/2023 141432  WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEASNG INC   $3,425.00

499572  06/05/2023 140929  ERIC C WELTE                       $321.09

499574  06/05/2023 139244  AMANDA L WHARTON-HUNT              $330.54

499577  06/05/2023 137485  WENDY A WIGHT                      $118.36

499578  06/05/2023 135974  WILDLIFE LEARNING ENCOUNTERS       $242.25

499579  06/05/2023 136943  MICHAELA M WRAGGE                  $381.36

499580  06/05/2023 140186  BRITTANY L WUNDERLICH              $169.08

499581  06/05/2023 130371  ROBERT J YAKUS                     $44.56

499583  06/05/2023 138356  JEFFREY F YOST                     $269.00

499584  06/05/2023 096200  YOUNG & WHITE                      $18,902.00

499585  06/05/2023 135890  YOUTH FRONTIERS INC                $3,500.00

499586  06/05/2023 142269  WHC NE LLC                         $17,338.75

May 30, 2023 14

24



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 499587  06/05/2023 137020  CHAD R ZIMMERMAN                   $628.80

499588  06/05/2023 136855  PAUL R ZOHLEN                      $35.37

499589  06/05/2023 135647  LACHELLE L ZUHLKE                  $31.40

E105732 06/05/2023 044050  ACCO BRANDS CORPORATION            $4,796.40

E105733 06/05/2023 108351  AIRGAS INC                         $195.84

E105735 06/05/2023 140298  AMPLIFY EDUCATION INC              $258.00

E105736 06/05/2023 012590  HOLLAND USA INC                    $49.25

E105737 06/05/2023 102832  AOI                                $97.68

E105738 06/05/2023 106436  AQUA-CHEM INC                      $3,675.60

E105739 06/05/2023 138291  AUTISM CENTER OF NEBRASKA INC      $14,579.00

E105740 06/05/2023 102727  B & H PHOTO                        $2,976.97

E105741 06/05/2023 135991  BAKER DISTRIBUTING CO LLC          $978.05

E105745 06/05/2023 019111  BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT          $71,899.80

E105746 06/05/2023 019559  BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC      $2,328.59

E105747 06/05/2023 140156  CAMBIUM DATA INC                   $42,552.00

E105748 06/05/2023 090270  UNITED DISTRIBUTORS  INC           $2,205.00

E105749 06/05/2023 041500  CONCORD THEATRICALS CORP           $1,381.47

E105750 06/05/2023 136574  CONTROL DEPOT INC                  $515.41

E105751 06/05/2023 026057  CONTROL MASTERS INC                $1,860.48

E105754 06/05/2023 032800  DEMCO INC                          $1,068.89

E105756 06/05/2023 033473  DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC             $602.06

E105760 06/05/2023 137635  DTN LLC                            $10,680.00

E105761 06/05/2023 036520  EASTERN NEBRASKA HUMAN SVCS AGENCY $14,288.00

E105762 06/05/2023 038023  EGAN SUPPLY COMPANY                $650.70

E105763 06/05/2023 038100  CONSOLIDATED ELECTRICAL DISTR INC  $161.35

E105764 06/05/2023 132066  ENGINEERED CONTROLS INC            $9,055.00

E105765 06/05/2023 040537  WOLSELEY INVESTMENTS INC           $1,176.99

E105766 06/05/2023 106956  FERRELLGAS                         $84.00

May 30, 2023 15

25



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 E105767 06/05/2023 133919  FILTER SHOP INC                    $2,526.68

E105768 06/05/2023 133960  FIREGUARD INC                      $1,923.20

E105769 06/05/2023 140791  FRONTLINE PRIVATE SECURITY LLC     $5,024.74

E105770 06/05/2023 044891  THE PROPHET CORPORATION            $5,763.73

E105771 06/05/2023 044950  GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY         $3,265.47

E105772 06/05/2023 138797  HANOVER RESEARCH COUNCIL LLC       $51,000.00

E105774 06/05/2023 048786  HILLYARD INC                       $46.87

E105775 06/05/2023 130990  HORWATH LAUNDRY MACHINERY CO       $1,116.49

E105776 06/05/2023 142203  INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS LLC    $5,097.38

E105777 06/05/2023 100928  J W PEPPER & SON INC.              $1,167.41

E105778 06/05/2023 130994  JOHNSON CONTROLS INC               $10,816.60

E105779 06/05/2023 054630  JOHNSTONE SUPPLY                   $1,295.43

E105780 06/05/2023 054471  JOSTENS INC                        $647.29

E105781 06/05/2023 101224  KAPCO                              $270.60

E105782 06/05/2023 138181  KIDWELL ELECTRIC COMPANY INC       $5,611.00

E105784 06/05/2023 135156  LAWSON PRODUCTS INC                $2,458.07

E105786 06/05/2023 059470  LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL INC    $1,526.00

E105787 06/05/2023 060023  NEBRASKA SPORTS INDUSTRIES INC.    $11,466.51

E105788 06/05/2023 059560  MATHESON TRI-GAS INC               $252.23

E105789 06/05/2023 137947  MECHANICAL SALES PARTS INC         $1,434.00

E105790 06/05/2023 073300  PERFORMANCE HEALTH SUPPLY INC      $638.51

E105791 06/05/2023 102493  MICHAEL TODD & CO INC              $689.93

E105792 06/05/2023 101068  MIDWEST BOX COMPANY                $6,323.20

E105794 06/05/2023 065233  MIDWEST TURF & IRRIGATION INC      $604.49

E105795 06/05/2023 068334  NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC            $7,633.72

E105796 06/05/2023 134725  OMAHA CASING CO INC                $435.00

E105797 06/05/2023 102199  PRIORITY FITNESS INC               $1,470.70

E105798 06/05/2023 137779  JARDINE QUALITY IRRIGATION INC     $1,384.13

May 30, 2023 16

26



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 E105799 06/05/2023 078420  RAWSON & SONS ROOFING, INC.        $21,411.00

E105800 06/05/2023 078670  REAMS SPRINKLER SUPPLY COMPANY INC $16,955.48

E105801 06/05/2023 137911  RIVER CITY GLASS LLC               $358.74

E105802 06/05/2023 079450  ROTARY CLUB OF MILLARD-OMAHA       $1,050.00

E105803 06/05/2023 082350  SCHOOL SPECIALTY LLC               $3,197.80

E105805 06/05/2023 100577  TAYLOR CORPORATION                 $95.94

E105806 06/05/2023 088709  AMERICAN EAGLE COMPANY INC         $132.99

E105808 06/05/2023 133969  TENNANT SALES & SERVICE COMPANY    $968.73

E105810 06/05/2023 138304  TIME MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS            $4,779.45

E105811 06/05/2023 106364  TRANE US INC                       $2,069.83

E105812 06/05/2023 090214  UNITED ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO INC      $101.66

E105813 06/05/2023 138759  UNITED LANGUAGE GROUP INC          $2,537.60

E105814 06/05/2023 090440  BSN SPORTS INC                     $62.25

E105815 06/05/2023 138328  VEX ROBOTICS INC                   $1,983.54

E105819 06/05/2023 093650  VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC              $566.09

E105820 06/05/2023 093765  WATER ENGINEERING, INC.            $5,211.57

E105821 06/05/2023 139185  WEST OMAHA WINSUPPLY CO            $2,604.84

E105822 06/05/2023 137878  WHITE WOLF WEB PRINTERS INC        $1,498.85

E105823 06/05/2023 109852  WURTH BAER SUPPLY CO               $418.44

01 - Total $2,213,478.48

02 27195   06/05/2023 143574  ERIC AMADOR                        $152.25

27196   06/05/2023 143577  TWILA L BOYSEN                     $87.00

27197   06/05/2023 144144  AMY L BUTTS                        $70.81

27198   06/05/2023 144229  WENDY M ENGHAUSER                  $57.05

27199   06/05/2023 143575  AARON J GARRETT                    $54.38

27200   06/05/2023 010670  GOODWIN TUCKER GROUP               $481.56

27201   06/05/2023 143750  STEPHANIE M JOHNSON                $9.50

27202   06/05/2023 131437  GRACE C KUBIK                      $52.40

May 30, 2023 17

27



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

02 27203   06/05/2023 106392  MARKING REFRIGERATION INC          $9,404.25

27204   06/05/2023 136279  MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL CLEARING ACCT $707.35

27205   06/05/2023 100013  ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC         $201.45

27206   06/05/2023 144140  POLAR LEASING COMPANY INC          $1,400.00

27207   06/05/2023 143975  RYLEE M SCHROEDER                  $76.13

27208   06/05/2023 143576  JOHN C SHUKIS                      $76.13

27209   06/05/2023 101476  SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES            $1,233,079.14

02 - Total $1,245,909.40

06 499137  06/05/2023 133480  BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY    $7,886.50

499148  06/05/2023 144189  MARC A BIRKEY                      $280.00

499177  06/05/2023 133970  CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS           $99,991.00

499178  06/05/2023 133589  CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.               $151,960.90

499212  06/05/2023 131003  DAILY RECORD                       $22.16

499220  06/05/2023 132669  DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC            $750.00

499338  06/05/2023 058775  LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC      $1,000.00

499365  06/05/2023 142914  MARATHON REPROGRAPHICS INC         $800.00

499396  06/05/2023 134532  MORRISSEY ENGINEERING INC          $1,800.00

499419  06/05/2023 144194  NORTHERN COMPUTER TECHNOLOGIES INC $2,030.00

499458  06/05/2023 134598  PRIME COMMUNICATIONS INC           $129,335.92

499480  06/05/2023 134824  ROOFING SOLUTIONS INC              $11,000.00

499485  06/05/2023 140085  SAMPSON CONSTRUCTION CO INC        $283,431.00

499527  06/05/2023 132452  TERRACON INC                       $5,350.00

499560  06/05/2023 144206  VIVACITY TECH PBC                  $64,500.00

E105737 06/05/2023 102832  AOI                                $16,597.08

E105745 06/05/2023 019111  BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT          $2,445.00

E105747 06/05/2023 140156  CAMBIUM DATA INC                   $53,100.00

E105817 06/05/2023 141363  PATTI BANKS ASSOCIATES LLC         $4,702.50

06 - Total $836,982.06

May 30, 2023 18

28



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

07 499107  06/05/2023 010040  A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC      $215.11

499117  06/05/2023 102430  AMI GROUP INC                      $810.00

499137  06/05/2023 133480  BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY    $17,739.02

499164  06/05/2023 135245  BAHR VERMEER HAECKER ARCHITECTS    $3,337.24

499258  06/05/2023 143780  GENESIS CONTRACTING GROUP LLC      $13,500.00

499365  06/05/2023 142914  MARATHON REPROGRAPHICS INC         $2,729.00

499396  06/05/2023 134532  MORRISSEY ENGINEERING INC          $11,600.00

499426  06/05/2023 131057  OMAHA NEON SIGN COMPANY INC.       $2,940.00

499459  06/05/2023 139972  PURDY & SLACK ARCHITECTS PC        $15,750.00

499464  06/05/2023 142847  READY TO KOOL LLC                  $7,100.00

499469  06/05/2023 143579  RESOURCE RENTAL CENTER INC         $481.00

499472  06/05/2023 106416  RIFE CONSTRUCTION INC              $20,397.81

499485  06/05/2023 140085  SAMPSON CONSTRUCTION CO INC        $111,068.00

499489  06/05/2023 081880  SCHEMMER ASSOCIATES INC            $1,416.10

499509  06/05/2023 084019  SOL LEWIS ENGINEERING COMPANY      $90,085.50

499575  06/05/2023 136909  WHEELER CONTRACTING INC            $480.00

E105751 06/05/2023 026057  CONTROL MASTERS INC                $115,422.00

E105752 06/05/2023 132170  CORMACI CONSTRUCTION INC           $5,961.50

E105759 06/05/2023 139946  DOWNS ELECTRIC INC                 $191,700.00

E105783 06/05/2023 099217  LAKESHORE EQUIPMENT CO             $3,431.40

E105792 06/05/2023 101068  MIDWEST BOX COMPANY                $73.36

E105804 06/05/2023 140803  SUPERIOR LIGHTING INC              $82,263.60

E105816 06/05/2023 092323  VIRCO INC                          $563.76

07 - Total $699,064.40

11 499096  05/18/2023 144228  LINCOLN CHILDREN'S ZOO             $469.00

499116  06/05/2023 132722  AAFCS                              $2,996.00

499122  06/05/2023 012896  NANCY G ANDERSON                   $296.74

499125  06/05/2023 012989  APPLE COMPUTER INC                 $1,282.95

May 30, 2023 19

29



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

11 499157  06/05/2023 141522  AMANDA J BRAUN                     $117.09

499159  06/05/2023 140520  JULIE K BREESE                     $80.29

499175  06/05/2023 143482  KEEGAN R CASE                      $3,309.25

499181  06/05/2023 144216  MINDY CHADWELL                     $180.00

499191  06/05/2023 138843  JILL R CLASSEN                     $43.47

499212  06/05/2023 131003  DAILY RECORD                       $16.40

499213  06/05/2023 135204  DEAN JACOBS ADVENTURES LLC         $1,000.00

499214  06/05/2023 106713  ANDREW S DEFREECE                  $200.00

499225  06/05/2023 142444  DREAMBOX LEARNING INC              $6,440.00

499226  06/05/2023 138118  STACIE A DUELLO                    $50.94

499233  06/05/2023 037525  EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3        $120.00

499239  06/05/2023 144251  JEFFREY A ERIXON                   $225.43

499255  06/05/2023 143691  FOLLETT CONTENT SOLUTIONS LLC      $1,759.16

499265  06/05/2023 140770  ANTONIO A GONZALEZ                 $32.45

499278  06/05/2023 048517  GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC     $5,750.00

499290  06/05/2023 144238  JON GIPSON HOOD                    $200.00

499323  06/05/2023 138348  JPW INDUSTRIES INC                 $8,842.75

499329  06/05/2023 143128  JUDITH T KIRST                     $247.85

499337  06/05/2023 144111  K12 SIGN LANGUAGE SOLUTIONS LLC    $8,130.85

499341  06/05/2023 058800  LANOHA NURSERIES INC               $4,000.00

499345  06/05/2023 142242  KRISTINA B LEEPER                  $2,050.00

499348  06/05/2023 139583  JENA J LEU                         $423.19

499350  06/05/2023 140456  THE LINCOLN ELECTRIC CO            $5,805.56

499355  06/05/2023 144155  ALEXA G LUTHER                     $1,343.50

499362  06/05/2023 138645  LAURA K MALCOM                     $63.28

499367  06/05/2023 138341  MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES HOLDINGS $21,266.93

499384  06/05/2023 138462  MIDLAND UNIVERSITY                 $4,725.00

499387  06/05/2023 065310  MILLARD SCHOOLS ED FOUNDATION INC  $244.40

May 30, 2023 20

30



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

11 499390  06/05/2023 142863  CARRIE S MITCHELL                  $15.92

499392  06/05/2023 143585  EMILY J MORGAN                     $2,207.50

499402  06/05/2023 068415  NEBRASKA COUNCIL SCHOOL ADMIN      $1,200.00

499425  06/05/2023 099658  OMAHA CHILDRENS MUSEUM             $836.00

499427  06/05/2023 133004  OMAHA PUBLIC SCHOOLS FOUNDATION    $500.00

499448  06/05/2023 138397  PICKATIME                          $70.00

499466  06/05/2023 141984  REBECCA L REGER                    $21.39

499476  06/05/2023 144028  SHERIDAN R RODRIGUEZ               $3,193.75

499493  06/05/2023 134173  ANGELA J SCHRAMM                   $17.88

499498  06/05/2023 109815  JENNIFER L SCOTT                   $276.40

499507  06/05/2023 138623  TURCO INC                          $1,815.00

499508  06/05/2023 101476  SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES            $550.34

499515  06/05/2023 144096  THE STEPPING STONES GROUP LLC      $47,905.50

499518  06/05/2023 132315  STRATEGIC AIR & SPACE MUSEUM       $399.00

499520  06/05/2023 139843  STUDENT TRANSPORTATION NEBRASKA INC $2,907.75

499521  06/05/2023 143985  SCOTT STURGEON                     $1,100.00

499530  06/05/2023 143974  TITAN NURSE STAFFING LLC           $54,567.50

499538  06/05/2023 143960  MARIE ELIZABETH CHINISON           $1,880.20

499542  06/05/2023 142309  UNANIMOUS INC                      $2,102.50

499543  06/05/2023 100923  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA LINCOLN     $300.00

499545  06/05/2023 068840  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA    $2,701.75

499553  06/05/2023 140504  SARAH A VALASEK                    $18.92

499573  06/05/2023 144249  JASON BRADLEY WEST                 $1,000.00

499576  06/05/2023 139303  WHY ARTS INC                       $100.00

499582  06/05/2023 139165  MARIA G SCARPELLO YEARIAN          $1,170.00

499590  06/05/2023 139468  CHERYL M ZWEEDYK                   $97.56

E105734 06/05/2023 140411  SCOMAC INC                         $4,959.67

E105740 06/05/2023 102727  B & H PHOTO                        $5,019.57

May 30, 2023 21

31



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

11 E105753 06/05/2023 109063  CRISIS PREVENTION INSTITUTE INC    $4,249.00

E105757 06/05/2023 135509  DIGIORGIO'S SPORTSWEAR INC         $528.00

E105782 06/05/2023 138181  KIDWELL ELECTRIC COMPANY INC       $18,394.85

E105809 06/05/2023 140681  TEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE LLC             $30,210.55

11 - Total $272,028.98

14 499500  06/05/2023 142167  PRISM HEALTH GROUP LLC             $4,997.25

14 - Total $4,997.25

17 499125  06/05/2023 012989  APPLE COMPUTER INC                 $243.50

499177  06/05/2023 133970  CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS           $4,289.39

499178  06/05/2023 133589  CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.               $249.27

499179  06/05/2023 051572  CENGAGE LEARNING                   $12,332.25

499252  06/05/2023 131555  FLOORS INC                         $12,361.00

499263  06/05/2023 144128  LIMINEX INC                        $891.00

499301  06/05/2023 F03085  ILINI SARL                         $13,104.00

499316  06/05/2023 054500  JOHNSON HARDWARE CO LLC            $280.00

499389  06/05/2023 131328  MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY            $4,170.00

499404  06/05/2023 068445  NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC        $334.00

499502  06/05/2023 144217  WOOLY LEARNING INC                 $39,726.75

499566  06/05/2023 135561  WAYSIDE PUBLISHING                 $1,750.00

E105736 06/05/2023 012590  HOLLAND USA INC                    $285.11

E105745 06/05/2023 019111  BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT          $250.00

E105756 06/05/2023 033473  DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC             $20,775.10

E105758 06/05/2023 130648  DOSTALS CONSTRUCTION CO INC        $9,493.19

E105771 06/05/2023 044950  GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY         $765.96

E105773 06/05/2023 047856  HARCOURT OUTLINES INC              $961.50

E105807 06/05/2023 109041  AMERICAN EAGLE COMPANY INC         $7,792.77

17 - Total $130,054.79

50 499111  06/05/2023 144230  CLEMENT AGHO-OTOGHILE              $300.00

May 30, 2023 22

32



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

50 499130  06/05/2023 135750  KELLY A BAKEY                      $117.34

499190  06/05/2023 144232  LOGAN CLARK                        $65.00

499196  06/05/2023 143187  COMPUTER SUPPLY PEOPLE LLC         $296.25

499255  06/05/2023 143691  FOLLETT CONTENT SOLUTIONS LLC      $73.37

499317  06/05/2023 054492  JIM L JOHNSON                      $550.00

499318  06/05/2023 144022  KADEYN JOHNSON                     $70.00

499341  06/05/2023 058800  LANOHA NURSERIES INC               $6,885.00

499342  06/05/2023 141699  ANDREW CHRISTOPHER LAST            $300.00

499366  06/05/2023 141209  SHALEE COLE MAULEON                $75.00

499430  06/05/2023 144243  RYAN ORLANDO                       $300.00

499434  06/05/2023 142290  OVERDRIVE INC                      $1,000.00

499439  06/05/2023 136739  JAMES W KUPER                      $1,985.50

499445  06/05/2023 106920  HOWARD T PETERSON                  $75.00

499481  06/05/2023 071023  OMAHA THEATER CO FOR YOUNG PEOPLE  $640.00

499501  06/05/2023 144246  JAI SEHGAL                         $300.00

499524  06/05/2023 144247  ZAYNAB SYED                        $300.00

499526  06/05/2023 138062  DUSTIN P TAYLOR                    $304.00

499552  06/05/2023 137914  JAMES B VAIR                       $75.00

499589  06/05/2023 135647  LACHELLE L ZUHLKE                  $67.93

E105740 06/05/2023 102727  B & H PHOTO                        ($200.99)

E105745 06/05/2023 019111  BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT          $236.00

E105756 06/05/2023 033473  DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC             $826.70

E105758 06/05/2023 130648  DOSTALS CONSTRUCTION CO INC        $15,306.81

E105773 06/05/2023 047856  HARCOURT OUTLINES INC              $276.48

E105777 06/05/2023 100928  J W PEPPER & SON INC.              $42.79

E105787 06/05/2023 060023  NEBRASKA SPORTS INDUSTRIES INC.    $642.89

E105793 06/05/2023 064980  MIDWEST SOUND & LIGHTING INC       $7,373.50

E105818 06/05/2023 143271  VITALSIGNS UNLIMITED INC           $645.00

May 30, 2023 23

33



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Jun 5, 2023

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

50 - Total $38,928.57

99 499342  06/05/2023 141699  ANDREW CHRISTOPHER LAST            ($36.00)

499439  06/05/2023 136739  JAMES W KUPER                      ($75.82)

499565  06/05/2023 136617  ANTHONY R WARD                     ($182.40)

99 - Total ($294.22)

Overall - Total $5,441,149.71

May 30, 2023 24

34



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Approval of Rule 2100.12: Administration - Executive Director of Assessment 
 
Meeting Date:  June 5, 2023 
 
Background/                
Description:  Updated Job Description  
 
                                                                                                                                       
Action Desired: Approval of Rule 2100.12: Administration - Executive Director of Assessment 
   
  
Policy /  
Strategic Plan 
Reference:      N/A  
 
      
Responsible Person(s): Dr. Kevin Chick, Associate Superintendent of Human Resources                                                       
  
  
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  

 

35



Administrator Job Description 2100.12 
 
Title: Executive Director for Assessment, Research and Evaluation 

Reports to: Assistant Superintendent for Leadership, Planning & Evaluation 

General Summary: Directs the data center, assessment, research, and evaluation for the District to facilitate 
improvement in the educational programs and services of the District. 

 
Essential Functions: 

I. Coordinates the development, implementation and review of district-wide assessments and data analysis 
for norm-referenced and criterion-referenced assessment, district and state assessments, and measures of 
national and international academic achievement. (20%) 

 
II. Coordinates district evaluation activities (e.g., strategic and site planning, school recognition programs, 

curriculum and instruction programs) as assigned by the Superintendent. (5%) 
 
III. Evaluates district programs to determine effectiveness and provides summary reports on district 

evaluation activities to the Millard Board of Education as directed by the Superintendent. (5%) 
 
IV. Provides advice and technical assistance in research design and program evaluation, and reports data 

and provides statistical analysis and recommendations. (10%) 
 
V. Conducts assessments and surveys based on district-identified needs. (5%) 

 

VI. Develops and implements ongoing staff development professional learning and in-services to train 
staff and administrators on assessments and data analysis. (5%) 

 
VII. Receives, evaluates, and approves all proposals to conduct research in the Millard Public Schools 

as submitted by staff or outside organizations, agencies, or individuals. Proposals will be referred to 
appropriate parties for review and recommendation. (5%) 

 
VIII. Maintains and provides student data, provides appropriate feedback to administrators and staff, and 

submits reports to the federal and state government, and other agencies. (10%) 
 

IX. Attends all School Board and Cabinet meetings. (5%) 
 

X. Oversees the District data center, including the Student Information System (SIS). (20%) 

 

XI. Collaborates with various departments on projects or initiatives and advises on the appropriateness relative to 
data governance, integrity of data, and overall best practice within the use of data. (5%) 

 

XII. Performs other duties as assigned by the Superintendent. (5%) 
 
Qualifications: 
 
I. Education Level: A doctoral degree from an approved institution with a major in 

educational administration, educational psychology, or the accepted equivalent is preferred. 
 

II. Certification or Licensure: Nebraska Administrative Certification preferred but not required. 
 

 
 

 

36



III. Experience desired: Five years of successful experience in administration with experience in planning, 
research and evaluation is preferred. Three years of experience is required. 

 
IV. Other requirements:  Leadership skills in the following areas: planning, research, assessment, and 

evaluation; ability to work with other administrators and ability to assess the needs of the Ddistrict. 
Special Requirements: 

 
  Occasional Frequent Constant 

  1-32% 33-66% 67+% 

1 Standing x   

2 Walking  x  

3 Sitting  x  

4 Lifting 25 lb max x   

5 Carrying 50 feet x   

6 Pushing / Pulling x   

7 Climbing / Balancing x   

8 Stooping / Kneeling / Crouching / Crawling x   

9 Reaching / Handling x   

10 Speaking / Hearing   x 

11 Seeing / Depth Perception / Color  x  

The statements herein are intended to describe the general nature and level of work being performed by employees 
assigned to this classification. They are not intended to be construed as an exhaustive list of all responsibilities, duties, 
and skills required of personnel so classified. Responsibilities and duties assigned are at the discretion of the 
superintendent.

Employee Signature: __________________________________________Date: ___________________ 
Supervisor Signature: __________________________________________Date: ___________________
 
 
Approved: June 27, 1989 Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  July 21, 1997; September 21, 1998; September 13, 1999; Omaha, Nebraska 
April 19, 2004; September 4, 2007. September 15, 2008; March 1, 2010; 
September 6, 2011; August 1, 2016, July 12, 2021, June 5, 2023 

37



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Approval of Rule 2100.13: Administration - Executive Director of Activities, Athletics 
and External Engagement 

 
Meeting Date:  June 5, 2023 
 
Background/                
Description:  Updated Job Description  
 
                                                                                                                                       
Action Desired: Approval of Rule 2100.13: Administration - Executive Director of Activities, Athletics 

and External Engagement 
   
  
Policy /  
Strategic Plan 
Reference:      N/A  
 
      
Responsible Person(s): Dr. Kevin Chick, Associate Superintendent of Human Resources                                                       
  
  
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  

 

38



Administrative Job Description 
 
Executive Director of Activities, Athletics and External EngagementAffairs 2100.13 
 
 
Reports to: Superintendent  
 
General Summary: Directs and evaluates those programs and services in the areas of district activities, athletics, 
District’s School-Community use of Facilities Program, directs governmental affairs, Project PAYBACPartners for 
Education, special projects and its accompanying routines for the school district, under the direction of the 
Superintendent.  
 
Essential Functions: 
 

I. Directs the District’s legislative lobbying efforts and governmental affairs. (15%) 
 

I. Evaluates administrators as assigned by the Superintendent. (5%) 
  

II. Oversight of the Clarke Community Initiative Program. (5%) 
 

III. Designs and implements the business/school partnership. (25%) 
 
IV. Directs and evaluates all district drama, musical, athletic and school organization activities and contests. 

(45%)  
 
V. Directs school-community use of facilities. (10%)  

 
VI. Assists in the selection, employment, assignment and evaluation of coaching personnel and activities 

sponsors. (35%)  
 

VII. Assists in the Accounting for all monies handled in the district activities and athletic program in accordance 
with prescribed local and state procedures. (23%)  

 
VIII. Cooperates with the Director of Communication in the dissemination of information to the public regarding 

athletics and activities programs.  (13%)  
 
IX. Facilitates district communications among and between schools. (23%)  
 
X. Assists in the development of Board policies related to district activities, athletics, and use of facilities. (2%)  

 
XI. Updates and maintains district activity and athletic guidelines. (25%)  
 

XII. Prepares program budget request for all areas of the district activities and athletics. (2%)  
 

XIII. Assists in establishing and maintaining positive relations and advancing strategic projects with civic, 
professional, philanthropic, service, business, parents, and parent organizations and the community in 
general. (2010%)  

 
XIV. Serves as a liaison to those building administrators responsible for the operation of the co-curricular and 

extracurricular programs. (515%)  
 

XV. Acts as official representative for Millard Public Schools with the Nebraska School Activities Association 
(NSAA) and metro conference. (45%)  

 

39



XVI. Evaluates, plans, and budgets for facilities improvements including working with district maintenance and 
support services representatives to assure appropriate maintenance, and project planning of athletic facilities 
and fields. (1510%)  
 

XVII. Attends all School Board, Executive Committee and Cabinet Meetings and prepares such reports for the 
Board as the Superintendent may request.  (45%)  

 
XVIII. Performs other duties as assigned by the Superintendent. (12%)  

 
 
Qualifications: 
 

i. Education Level:  A six-year ed. specialist degree from an approved institution with a major in educational 
administration or the accepted equivalent is preferred. A master’s degree from an approved institution with 
a major in educational administration or the accepted equivalent required.  

 
ii. Education Level:  Appropriate Nebraska Administrative Certificate preferred.  

 
iii. Education Level:  Four years of successful experience in administration with experience in directing 

athletics and activities preferred; three years of successful administration experience required.  
 

iv. Other requirements:  Leadership skills in the area of administration, management and evaluation - 
sensitivity to the needs and objectives of the school and the district.  

 
 
Special Requirements: 
   Occasional Frequent Constant 
     1 - 32% 33 - 66%   67% + 
1. Standing  ...................................................................................... x 
2. Walking  ....................................................................................... x 
3 Sitting  ....................................................................................... x 
4. Lifting     20      lb max. ............................................................ x 
5. Carrying     25      feet .................................................................. x 
6. Pushing / Pulling ................................................................................. x 
7. Climbing / Balancing .......................................................................... x 
8. Stooping / Kneeling / Crouching / Crawling ....................................... x 
9. Reaching / Handling ............................................................................ x 
10. Speaking / Hearing ...............................................................................  x 
11. Seeing / depth perception / color ..........................................................  x 
 
The statements herein are intended to describe the general nature and level of work being performed by employees 
assigned to this classification. They are not intended to be construed as an exhaustive list of all responsibilities, 
duties, and skills required of personnel so classified. Responsibilities and duties assigned are at the discretion of the 
supervisor and building principal (or superintendent).  
 
 
 
Rule Approved: March 7, 2005  Millard Public Schools  
Revised:  November 21, 2011, April 21, 2014, April 17, 2017, June 5, 2023 
 Omaha, NE  
 
 
 

40



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Approval of Rule 2100.23: Administration – Director of Strategic Projects and External 
Affairs 

 
Meeting Date:  June 5, 2023 
 
Background/                
Description:  New Job Description  
 
                                                                                                                                       
Action Desired: Approval of Rule 2100.23: Administration – Director of Strategic Projects and External 

Affairs 
   
  
Policy /  
Strategic Plan 
Reference:      N/A  
 
      
Responsible Person(s): Dr. Kevin Chick, Associate Superintendent of Human Resources                                                       
  
  
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  

 

41



Administrative Job Description 
 
Director for Strategic Projects and External Affairs 2100.23 
 
 
Reports to: Superintendent  
 
 
General Summary: Assists with the implementation of the District Strategic Plan and other projects 
prioritized by the Superintendent.  Facilitates external affairs for the School District. 
 
Essential Functions: 
 

I. Directs the District’s legislative lobbying efforts. (15%) 
  

II. Assists with the implementation of the district strategic plan and other district priority initiatives as 
determined by the Superintendent. (30%) 
  

III. Assists with program evaluation and makes recommendations for related continuous improvement. (5%) 
  

IV. Evaluates administrators as assigned by the Superintendent. (10%) 
  

V. Facilitates connections and collaboration with other political subdivisions, governmental entities, and elected 
officials. (15%)    
  

VI. Attends all School Board, Executive Committee, and Cabinet Meetings and prepares such reports for the 
Board as the Superintendent may request (5%).   
  

VII. Assists with the planning and attends advisory group meetings as established by the Superintendent. (5%) 
  

VIII. Assists in establishing and maintaining positive relations with civic, professional, business, and the 
community in general.  (10%) 
  

IX. Develops and administers budgets to support governance and other strategic projects assigned. (1%) 
  

X. Performs other duties as assigned. (4%) 
 
 
Qualifications: 
 
i. Education Level: A six-year ed. specialist degree from an approved institution with a major in educational 
administration or the accepted equivalent is preferred. A master’s degree from an approved institution with a 
major in educational administration or the accepted equivalent required.  
 
ii. Education Level: Appropriate Nebraska Administrative Certificate preferred.  
 
iii. Education Level: Four years of successful experience in administration with experience in program 
planning preferred; three years of successful administration experience required.  
 
iv. Other requirements: Leadership skills in the area of administration, management and evaluation - 
sensitivity to the needs and objectives of the school and the district. 
 
 
 
 

42



 
                                                                                Occasional Frequent Constant 
                                                                                       0 - 32%    33 - 66%   67% + 
1. Standing                                                x 
2. Walking                                                x 
3 Sitting                                                 x 
4. Lifting 15-20 lb max.                                   x 
5. Carrying 50 feet                                  x 
6. Pushing / Pulling                                  x 
7. Climbing / Balancing                                                 x 
8. Stooping / Kneeling / Crouching / Crawling           x 
9. Reaching / Handling                                                                           x 
10. Speaking / Hearing                                                                               x 
11. Seeing / depth perception / color                                                                             x 
 
The statements herein are intended to describe the general nature and level of work being performed by 
employees assigned to this classification. They are not intended to be construed as an exhaustive list of all 
responsibilities, duties, and skills required of personnel so classified. Responsibilities and duties assigned are 
at the discretion of the supervisor and building principal (or superintendent).  
 
 
Rule Approved: June 5, 2023 Millard Public Schools 

Omaha, NE 
   
 
 
 

43



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item:        Revise Rule 6315.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Millard Education  
Program- Use of Assessment Data 

 
Meeting Date:     June 5, 2023    
  
 
Background/                
Description:       This policy is being revised to reflect a new layer of support for English Learners.             
  
                                       
                                                                                                       
Action Desired:         Revise Rule 6315.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Millard Education  

Program- Use of Assessment Data 
 
 
Policy / Strategic Plan 
Reference:   N/A 
 
 
 
Responsible Person:  Dr. Heather Phipps 
  
  
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  
 

 
 
 

44



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment
Millard Education Program – Use of Assessment Data 6315.1

The assessment system shall take its overall direction from the District strategic plan and from state and federal
requirements. The assessment system shall be aligned with the written curriculum and shall measure student
progress within the primary, intermediate, middle and high school grade levels and their level of College and
Career Readiness. The system shall provide opportunities for support and appropriate interventions to occur if the
student does not demonstrate proficiency.

The system will include assessments which are designed to measure student progress and the Millard Education
Plan outcomes as well as alternate assessments designed to comply with state and federal legislation.

As curriculum revisions occur, the assessment system shall reflect those changes and modifications to assessments
and shall be approved by the Millard Board of Education. The curriculum content areas, grade levels when
administered, and the types of assessments shall be as follows:

Level: Primary Grades (K-2)

Outcome When Administered Name of Assessment

Reading Comprehension K, 1st, 2ndGrade MAP Growth

Writing K, 1st, 2nd Grade Analytical Writing Assessment
Writing Common Assessment

Mathematics K, 1st, 2ndGrade MAP Growth

Level: Intermediate Grades (3-5)

Outcome When Administered Name of Assessment

English Language Arts 3rd, 4th, and 5thGrade MAP Growth
NSCAS Growth
NSCAS Alternate
Assessment

Writing 3rd, 4th, and 5th Grade Analytical Writing Assessment
Writing Common Assessment

Mathematics 3rd, 4th, and 5th Grade MAP Growth
NSCAS Growth
NSCAS Alternate
Assessment

Science 5thGrade NSCAS Growth
NSCAS Alternate
Assessment

Level: Middle School Grades (6-8)

Outcome When Administered Name of Assessment

English Language Arts 6th, 7th, and 8thGrade MAP Growth
NSCAS Growth
NSCAS Alternate
Assessment

Writing 6th, 7th, and 8th Grade Analytical Writing Assessment
Writing Common Assessment

1

45



Mathematics 6th, 7th, and 8thGrade MAP Growth
NSCAS Growth
NSCAS Alternate
Assessment

Science 8thGrade NSCAS Growth
NSCAS Alternate
Assessment

Level: High School Grades

Outcome When Administered Name of Assessment

English Language Arts
Reading

9th and 10th Grade
10th Grade
11thGrade

MAP Growth
PreACT
ACT®Assessment
NSCAS Alternate
Assessment

Writing 9thGrade
10thGrade
11th Grade

Writing Common Assessment
Analytical Writing Assessment
ACT®Assessment

Mathematics 10th Grade
11thGrade

PreACT
ACT®Assessment
NSCAS Alternate
Assessment

Reading 11thGrade ACT®Assessment

Science 11thGrade ACT®Assessment
NSCAS Alternate
Assessment

I. Implementation of Assessment System

In accordance with Policy 6301 and Rule 6301.1, the District shall use all reasonable efforts to provide
adequate measurement by:

A. Establishing or confirming the reliability and validity of each recommended assessment;

B. Ensuring that the alignment of the assessment contents is consistent with the District’s curriculum;

C. Ensuring that the students of the District are provided with the opportunity to learn the material
which is the subject of each assessment;

D. Ensuring the establishment of adequate and necessary interventions; and

E. Ensuring or confirming a proper College and Career Ready metric for each assessment is
established through acceptable and reliable methods.

The intent of the assessment system is to ensure that the achievement levels of College and Career
Readiness have been met. A student may demonstrate successfully meeting the achievement levels
established when a student is able to meet any of the benchmarks set forth below. When a student
successfully meets the required achievement levels as set forth below, the student will no longer be
required to complete other assessments in the system.

If a student does not meet benchmarks on the assessments, additional opportunities are available to
demonstrate student proficiency.

2

46



If a student does not meet benchmarks on the assessments and the student is verified with a disability or
has a 504 Accommodation Plan, then the IEP or 504 Team will reconvene to review the education plan
and may consider lowering the College and Career Readiness metric requirement as part of the IEP or 504
Accommodation Plan.

II. Description of the Standard Setting Processes for National, State, and Local Assessments

A. Psychometrically accepted, standard methods shall be used for setting the cutscores on the
assessments. All locally-developed assessments shall be re-examined and recalibrated as needed
to ensure curriculum alignment as well as appropriateness of the College and Career Ready
metric.

B. ACT® Assessment: District locally defined College and Career Ready metric will be based on the
most current ACT® College and Career Readiness Benchmarks that denote having attained or
nearly attained status as established for the corresponding year in which the assessment was
taken.

C. Pre-ACT®: District locally defined College and Career Ready metric will be based on the most
current ACT® College and Career Readiness Benchmarks that denote having attained or nearly
attained status as established for the corresponding year in which the assessment was taken.
Pre-ACT benchmark scores are parallel to the MPS College & Career Readiness Benchmarks.

D. Nebraska State Accountability Tests: District locally defined College and Career Ready metric
will be based on ACT score ranges associated with On Track and ACT Benchmark Advanced as
defined by the state for the year in which the assessment was taken.

E. District Course Assessments: Locally developed District assessments designed by Educational
Services in conjunction with the Department of Assessment, Research, and Evaluation.
Approved course assessments serve as a means by which students may demonstrate proficiency.

F. Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) by NWEA, grades K-9 and select high school courses, is
a computer adaptive assessment developed and maintained using research-based psychometric
practices. MAP is used for benchmarking and progress monitoring for Essential Learner
Outcomes of College and Career Readiness.

III. Effect of Student Performance

A. When a student has successfully met the College and Career Readiness metric for each outcome:

1. A notation shall be made in the student’s cumulative record. Such information will be
communicated to parent(s)/guardian(s) in writing.

2. Students who meet the College and Career Readiness metric have met an essential criterion
for graduating from the Millard Public Schools. Upon successful completion of the required
number of credits and Personal Learning Plan as defined by Policy 6320 and Rule 6320.1,
students shall be eligible for a graduation diploma from the Millard Public Schools.

B. If a student has not met the College and Career Readiness metric for a given subject area, the
following shall occur:

1. The school/district will initiate a consistent and collaborative problem solving and
intervention model called Multi-tiered Systems of Support (MTSS). Records of problem
solving and intervention strategies are required.

3

47



2. Utilizing the MTSS problem solving process, school representatives will offer the student
learning activities that address recognized College and Career Readiness deficiencies.
Learning activities may include, but are not limited to, the following:

a. Differentiated/complementary instruction during regular classes (i.e., peer tutoring,
needs groups, individualized instruction);

b. Before or after school tutorials;
c. Study hall tutorials;
d. Change of interdisciplinary teams or level of instruction;
e. Repeat of specific course(s) of study;
f. Assignment to and attendance at specific class(es) designed to address deficiencies;
g. Attendance at summer school; and/or
h. Use of specific District identified interventions designed to support student achievement.

3. If the student is verified with a disability, the IEP Team may reconvene to review the
problem solving and intervention strategies and to ensure that the IEP is written to assist the
student in areas of weakness and that appropriate accommodations are in place.

4. If the student has a 504 Accommodation Plan, the 504 Team may reconvene to review the
problem solving and intervention strategies and to ensure that needed accommodations are
in place in areas of weakness.

5. If the student is identified as an English Learner (EL), a school team responsible for
planning the student’s academic program may reconvene to review the problem solving and
intervention strategies and to ensure that needed accommodations are in place in areas of
weakness.

C. Procedures for high school students

1. If a student has not met the College and Career Readiness metric for a given subject as measured
by the ACT®Assessment, the following shall occur:

a. The problem solving and intervention strategies will be reviewed by a qualified team and, if
necessary, redesigned. Students shall be referred to Building Problem Solving Team for
identification of needs if not previously referred.

b. The building will review the student’s results of the Nebraska State Accountability
Test. If the student has successfully met the College and Career Readiness metric
measured by Nebraska State Accountability Test for each outcome, then

(i) A notation shall be made in the student’s cumulative record. Such information will be
communicated to parent(s)/guardian(s) in writing.

(ii) Students who meet the College and Career Readiness metric have met an essential
criterion for graduating from the Millard Public Schools. Upon successful completion of
the required number of credits and Personal Learning Plan as defined by Policy 6320
and Rule 6320.1, the students shall be eligible for a graduation diploma from the Millard
Public Schools.

c. Students may submit additional ACT® results for consideration in meeting the College and
Career Ready metrics from testing occasions for which they have independently registered.

2. If after review of the student’s results of the Nebraska State Accountability Test a student has not
met the College and Career Readiness metric for a given Essential Learner Outcomes of College
and Career Readiness, the following shall occur:

4

48



a. The problem solving and intervention strategies will be reviewed by a qualified team and, if
necessary, redesigned. Students shall be referred to Building Problem Solving Team for
identification of needs if not previously referred.

b. The building will review the student’s results of Pre-ACT®Assessment. If the student has
successfully met the Essential Learner Outcomes of College and Career Readiness metric
measured by Pre-ACT®Assessment for each outcome, then

(i) A notation shall be made in the student’s cumulative record. Such information will be
communicated to parent(s)/guardian(s) in writing.

(ii) Students who meet the College and Career Readiness metric have met an essential
criterion for graduating from the Millard Public Schools. Upon successful completion of
the required number of credits and Personal Learning Plan as defined by Policy 6320
and Rule 6320.1, the students shall be eligible for a graduation diploma from the Millard
Public Schools.

3. If after review of the student’s results of the student’s results of Pre-ACT®Assessment, a student
has not met the College and Career Readiness metric, the following shall occur:

a. The problem solving and intervention strategies will be reviewed by a qualified team and, if
necessary, redesigned. Students shall be referred to Building Problem Solving Team for
identification of needs if not previously referred.

b. The building will review and administer locally-developed Essential Learner Outcome
assessments. If the student has successfully met the College and Career Readiness metric
measured by locally-developed ELO assessments for each outcome, then

(i) A notation shall be made in the student’s cumulative record. Such information will be
communicated to parent(s)/guardian(s) in writing.

(ii) Students who meet the College and Career Readiness metric have met an essential
criterion for graduating from the Millard Public Schools. Upon successful completion of
the required number of credits and Personal Learning Plan as defined by Policy 6320
and Rule 6320.1, the students shall be eligible for a graduation diploma from the Millard
Public Schools.

c. The student shall be retested using the appropriate Essential Learner Outcomes of
College and Career Readiness assessment. Students shall be given the opportunity to be
retested multiple times until the requisite College and Career Readiness metric is
achieved. Students shall be given notice of the opportunities for retesting.

4. The student will be considered ineligible for a diploma from the Millard Public Schools until
such time that the requisite College and Career Readiness metrics are achieved.

5. If the student is verified with a disability or has a 504 Accommodation Plan, then the IEP or 504
Team will reconvene to review the education plan and may consider lowering the College and
Career Readiness metric requirement as part of the IEP or 504 Accommodation Plan. The
student’s parent(s) and/or guardian(s) shall be notified and shall also be advised of the effect of
lowering the College and Career Readiness metric.

a. Applications for approval of lowered College and Career Readiness metric requirements
may be submitted by the student’s IEP or 504 Team to the Associate Superintendent of
Educational Services for consideration and where appropriate, approval. The Associate
Superintendent of Educational Services or designee shall decide and respond to all such
requests.

b. If the lowered College and Career Readiness metric is approved, the student shall then be
5

49



eligible to receive a graduation diploma with appropriate notation from the Millard Public
Schools as provided in Rule 6320.1.

D. Demonstration of Proficiency

Additional opportunities are available to demonstrate student proficiency.

After review of ACT® Assessment, Nebraska State Accountability Tests, or Pre-ACT® Assessment
and one or more attempts on Essential Learner Outcome locally-developed assessments without
achieving the College and Career Readiness metric, students, under building supervision, shall
participate in a process, as provided in the District’s Assessment Procedures, to demonstrate an
appropriate level of proficiency in reading, writing, and/or math. A student who successfully meets
the standards and requirements of a Demonstration of Proficiency shall have met one of the essential
criteria for graduating from the Millard Public Schools. Mechanisms by which students may
demonstrate proficiency include:

1. Performance portfolios comprised of District developed course assessment scores for
reading, writing, and math.

2. Approved Advanced Placement course grades of a “C” “3” or higher or an approved AP
exam score of a 2 or higher for an AP English course as evidence of Reading and Writing
competency, or grades of a “C” “3” or higher or an AP exam score of a 2 or higher for an
AP mathematics exam. All AP courses and exams used for this purpose shall have been
provided by and/or taken while enrolled in an accredited institution.

3. Approved dual enrollment course grades as evidence of Reading, Writing, or Mathematics
competencies e.g. the Metropolitan Community College (MCC) Developmental Math
Course.

4. Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) RIT score in high school Reading or Mathematics
comparable to near College and Career Ready ACT score.

5. Early Advanced (4) or Advanced (5) scores on the English Language Proficiency
Assessment (ELPA21) in the reading (for reading requirement) or writing (for writing
requirement) domains.

IV. District Procedures for Opting Out of Recommended Reteaching

A. Should a student participating in the Assessment Program not meet the requisite College and
Career Readiness metric and be recommended for one of the problem-solving and intervention
strategies listed above, including placement in a specific required course, the student’s
parent(s)/guardian(s) shall have the right to refuse placement of their student within the
recommended strategy and either:

1. Request an alternative teaching strategy; or

2. Refuse such placement at all.

B. Such requests for an alternative teaching strategy shall be submitted in writing to the appropriate
building principal. The building principal or designee shall respond within thirty (30) calendar
days.

V. District Procedures for New Students

A. At the high school level, incoming students who enroll after district administration of Pre-ACT®

6

50



or ACT® Assessment may provide verified results of these assessments from prior
administration. If verified results are not provided, students will take all high school
locally-developed Essential Learner Outcome assessments.

VI. District Procedures for Students with Disabilities and ELL Students

Pursuant to the Assessment Accommodations section of the District’s Assessment Procedures Manual, all
students are to participate in the District’s regular assessments and the only students to be excluded are
those with a disability or language proficiency which has excluded the student from the norm sample of
the standardized assessment, and/or those students who have not participated in the area and/or level of
the curriculum that the assessment measures. Even for such students, they are not totally exempt and they
must take an alternate assessment.

A. Procedures for Students with Disabilities

The preceding assessments may not be appropriate for some students with disabilities whose
individualized education programs prescribe a different course of instruction and/or different
requirements for graduation. The participation of students with disabilities, the provision of
accommodations, and the provision of alternate assessments will be in accordance with the
District’s Assessment Procedures, which include the process for identifying appropriate
assessment accommodations and alternate assessments.

B. Procedure for EL Students

Students must meet all graduation requirements in the English language to earn a Millard Public
Schools diploma. EL students who have not demonstrated adequate English language
proficiencies may postpone testing according to district procedures.

VII. Student’s Right to Appeal

A. Students who have not achieved the necessary high school College and Career Readiness metrics
as approved by the Millard Board of Education may appeal the denial of a diploma.

B. A student may appeal the denial of a diploma only on the grounds that the student’s failure to
achieve the required cutscore is due to:

1. The failure of the District to provide a reasonable accommodation that was previously
requested by the student and denied by the District.

2. The failure of the District to provide an alternate assessment or approve a demonstration of
proficiency, which had been previously requested by the student and denied by the District.

VIII. Procedures for Appeal

A. Within seven (7) days after the receipt of the notice that the student failed to achieve the cutscore
required for graduation from the Millard Public Schools, a written notice of appeal shall be
served upon the Superintendent of the Millard Public Schools or his/her designee. Such appeal
shall set forth all of the reasons for the appeal as provided herein and shall set forth the relief
sought by the student, parent(s) or guardian(s). Such notice of appeal may also include any
additional information, which is relevant to the appeal.

B. Within seven (7) days after the receipt of the written notice of appeal and any supporting
information relevant to the appeal, the Superintendent or designee shall consider and render a
decision on the appeal based on whether the decision of the District was unreasonable. Such
decision shall then be forwarded to the student’s parent(s) and/or guardian(s) advising the
student’s parent(s) and/or guardian(s) of the basis for the Superintendent’s decision and the

7

51



reasons therefore.

C. Within seven (7) days after the receipt of the written notification from the Superintendent or the
Superintendent’s designee, a written request may be made by the student, parent(s), or
guardian(s) to the secretary of the Millard Board of Education or the Superintendent, or designee
for a hearing before the Millard Board of Education, or a committee of the Board consisting of
not less than two (2) members or more than three (3) members to be held on the issue whether
the decision of the Superintendent or designee was unreasonable.

D. Such hearing shall be held before the Millard Board of Education or committee within thirty (30)
days of the date the request for hearing was received. If a hearing request is not received in a
timely manner, the decision of the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee shall be final.

E. The student, parent(s) and/or guardian(s) shall be advised at least seven (7) days prior to the date
of the hearing before the Board and such notification shall set forth the date, time, and place for
the hearing before the Millard Board of Education or committee.

F. The parties may, by mutual written agreement, extend the time for hearing or final determination.

G. The student, parent(s), and/or guardian(s) shall have the right to be represented by legal counsel
and shall have the opportunity to present such evidence that is material to the issue or issues
stated in the appeal.

H. The hearing shall be conducted in closed session and in accordance with the student privacy laws
unless the student, parent(s), and/or guardian(s) shall request, in writing, that the hearing be held
in open session. Any formal action of the Millard Board of Education or committee shall be
taken in closed session unless such proceeding was requested by the student, parent(s), or
guardian(s) to be held in open session.

I. The decision of the Millard Board of Education or committee shall be by vote of a majority of
the members of the Millard Board of Education and the Millard Board of Education or
committee shall reduce its findings and decision to writing and provide the written findings and
decision to the student, parent(s), and/or guardian(s) within ten (10) days of the hearing. When
conducting such proceedings, the Millard Board of Education or committee shall be exercising a
judicial function and deciding a dispute of adjudicative facts.

IX. Annual Review

This Rule shall be reviewed annually by the Educational Services Division and the Department of
Assessment, Research, and Evaluation and brought to the Board of Education when changes are
necessary.

Related Policies & Rules: 6301, 6301.1, 6315, 6320, 6320.1, 6320.2, 6320.3
Rule Adopted: December 21, 1998 Millard Public
Schools Rule Revised: February 7, 2000; February 4, 2002; March 3, 2003; Omaha,
Nebraska
June 21, 2004; June 6, 2005; January 16, 2006; June 4, 2007; June 16, 2008;
June 15, 2009; June 7, 2010; May 16, 2011; July 2, 2012; July 1, 2013;
October 21, 2013; July 7, 2014; August 3, 2015; July 11, 2016; November 6, 2017; May 7, 2018; August 20,
2018; June 3, 2019; June 7, 2021, June 6, 2022, August 15, 2022, June 5, 2023

8

52



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

 

Agenda Item:  Revise Rule 6320.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Students: 
Requirements for Senior High School Graduation 

 
 

Meeting Date:  June 5, 2023 

 
 

Background/              
Description:  

   This rule is being revised to clean up course name language 

  
        

Action Desired:     Revise Rule 6320.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Students: 
Requirements for Senior High School Graduation  

           
          

Policy /  
Strategic Plan 
Reference:   

     N/A  

                                                                                                                                  
    

Responsible 
Person(s): 

     Dr. Heather Phipps     

 
   
Superintendent’s 
Signature: 

 

      

                                                             
  
 
 
 
 
 

53



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment
Students: Requirements for Senior High School Graduation 6320.1

Students differ widely in interests, abilities and personal goals. For this reason, the following are stated as minimums
to allow flexibility in the planning of individual student programs. These basic uniform requirements are established
for graduation from the Millard Public Schools. In addition to specified credit requirements, students must
successfully meet District Assessment requirements as outlined in Board of Education Rule 6315.1 and complete a
Personal Learning Plan according to District requirements.

TOTAL
COURSE/SUBJECT

PROGRAM CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS CREDITS
English 40 English 9 10

English 10 10
English 11 10
Oral Communications 5

Choice of Speech, Forensics: Competitive Speech, Debate,
Competitive Debate, Professional Speaking
(Education Academy) or the combination of IB
Language A, IB Language B and 12th Grade
Theory of Knowledge

Choice of an English Selected Course 5

The student will take five (5) credits from the following:
English Selected Courses
AP English Language & Composition IB English HL II
AP English Literature & Composition Literacy for Life
Contemporary Literature Popular Genres in Literature
Creative Writing Literature and Film
Global Perspectives through Literature Research Methods College Writing

21st Century Media Literacy Media Analysis

I. Credits: A minimum of 230 credits is required for graduation. Each student’s program shall include, but
not be limited to, the programs and courses listed below and may be amended, revised, or deleted by the
Board of Education as approved and published in the Millard Public Schools High School Curriculum
Handbook and Registration Guide.

TOTAL
COURSE/SUBJECT

PROGRAM CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS CREDITS
Social Studies 30 World Geography - 9th 5

World History - 10th 10
United States History - 11th or 12th 10
United States Government & Economics - 11th or 12th 5

TOTAL
COURSE/SUBJECT

PROGRAM CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS CREDITS

54



Mathematics 30 Algebra I or Alg I: Foundations I 10
or appropriate course from the math sequence

A course numbered 220 or higher 10
One additional math course 10

Computer Science courses may not be applied
toward math credit.

TOTAL
COURSE/SUBJECT

PROGRAM CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS CREDITS
Science 30 Biology - 9th 10

Chemistry OR 10 OR
Physical Science: Chemistry - 10th or 11th 5

Physics OR AP Physics I: Algebra-Based 10 OR
Physical Science: Physics - 10th or 11th 5

Choice of Science Electives - dependent upon 0-10
choice of 5 or 10 credit Chemistry and Physics
Courses

Curriculum Handbook describes science courses and
recommended/optional course sequences.

TOTAL
COURSE/SUBJECT

PROGRAM CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS CREDITS
Physical Education 15 Choice of grade-appropriate courses 15

Curriculum Handbook describes PE courses and recommends
grade appropriate levels grade-level PE courses.

TOTAL
COURSE/SUBJECT

PROGRAM CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS CREDITS
Health Education 5 Healthy Living taken in 10th or 11th grade 5

ELD Health

TOTAL
COURSE/SUBJECT

PROGRAM CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS CREDITS
Fine & Performing 5 Choice of Fine & Performing Arts Courses 5
Arts

The student will take five (5) credits from the following:
Fine & Performing Arts Selected Courses
Any art course
Any music course
Theatre & Performance I
Theatre Appreciation

55



TOTAL
COURSE/SUBJECT

PROGRAM CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS CREDITS
Financial 5 Choice of Financial Literacy Selected Course 5
Literacy

The student will take five (5) credits from the following:
Financial Literacy Selected Courses
Personal Finance
Financial Literacy (Entrepreneurship Academy)
Life Skills & Career Opportunities (AFJROTC)
ELD Financial Literacy

TOTAL
COURSE/SUBJECT

PROGRAM CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS CREDITS
Human Resources 5 Choice of Human Resources Course 5

The student will take five (5) credits from the following:
Human Resources Selected Courses
Sociology Human Diversity
Psychology International Relations
Adult Life & Parenting Introduction to Behavioral Sciences
Child Development IB Psychology
AP Psychology IB Theory of Knowledge I
Law Studies World Religions
ELD Adult Living

TOTAL
COURSE/SUBJECT

PROGRAM CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS CREDITS
For the Class of 2027 and beyond:

Technology 5 Choice of Technology Education Selected Courses 5
Education

The student will take five (5) credits from the following:
Technology Education Selected Courses
Business Technologies
Emerging Technologies
Introduction to Computer Science Computer Science Programming
AP Computer Science Principles
Digital Media
Introduction to Engineering
Information Technology I (STEM Academy)
ELD Computer Literacy

TOTAL
COURSE/SUBJECT

PROGRAM CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS CREDITS
For the Classes prior to 2027:

Electives 65 A total of 65 additional credits 65

56



For the Class of 2027 and beyond:
Electives 60 A total of 60 additional credits 60

A. A grade of four (4) or better must be maintained in any course used to fulfill graduation
requirements.

B. Electives courses are offered in the subject areas previously listed and in business marketing &
management, communication & information systems, world language, family & consumer
sciences, skilled and technical sciences, art, drama, debate, journalism, and music.

C. In order to provide flexibility in such situations as transfers and special needs, waivers may be
submitted by staff and approved by the principal.

D. A student must complete credits as described herein in order to graduate and receive a diploma
from the Millard Public Schools.

II. Assessments: In addition to 230 credits required for graduation, students must also successfully meet the
College and Career Readiness metric for the high school Essential Learner Outcomes of College and Career
Readiness assessments. Assessment requirements, including the process to be followed when a student
does not initially meet the Essential Learner Outcomes of College and Career Readiness metric for each
outcome, are found in Rule 6315.1.

III. Personal Learning Plan (PLP): In addition to 230 credits and successfully meeting the College and Career
Readiness metric for the high school Essential Learner Outcomes of College and Career Readiness,
students must also complete a Personal Learning Plan (PLP) according to District requirements.

IV. Graduation: Upon successful completion of the required credits, assessments and Personal Learning Plan,
a student shall be eligible for a graduation diploma from the Millard Public Schools.

V. Annual Review: This rule shall be reviewed annually by the Educational Services Division and the
Department of Assessment, Research, and Evaluation and brought to the Board of Education when changes
are necessary.

Related Policies and Rules: 6301, 6301.1, 6315, 6315.1, 6320, 6320.2, 6320.3, 6320.4

Rule Approved: April 16, 2011 Millard Public Schools
Revised: Dec. 5, 1983; Dec. 17, 1990; May 17, 1999; Oct. 18, 1999; July 31, 2000; Omaha, NE
March 4, 2002; July 21, 2003; June 21, 2004; June 6, 2005; June 5, 2006; June 4, 2007;
July 7, 2008; November 2, 2009; November 1, 2010; November 7, 2011; November 5,
2012; October 21, 2013; August 4, 2014; November 3, 2014; July 6, 2015; November 2,
2015; July 11, 2016; August 20, 2018; June 3, 2019; June 3, 2019; June 7, 2021; May 2,
2022; November 7, 2022; November 21, 2022, June 5, 2023
Reaffirmed: July 6, 2009

57



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item:  Approve 2023-24 High School Calendars 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2023 

Background/              
Description:  

  The attached high school calendars were created from the board approved 2023-2024 
District student calendar. 

If there are any other deviations from these calendars, it will be according to Rule 
6020.2,  which allows the board and/or superintendent to dismiss school in      
emergency situations.   

      These calendars are published by each school and will also be available on the school 
      website.  

Action Desired:   Approve the 2023-24 High School Calendars 

Policy /  
Strategic Plan 
Reference:   

  Parameter - We will always communicate effectively, both internally and externally, 
in order to implement our Strategic Plan, operate our schools, and  
 student, staff, family and community support.  

Responsible 
Person(s): 

 Dr. Aaron Bearinger, Dr. Emili Brosnan, Dr. Greg Tiemann, Heidi Weaver, &  
Dr. Kim Saum-Mills 

Superintendent’s 
Signature: 

58



MILLARD NORTH HIGH SCHOOL 
COMPREHENSIVE CALENDAR 2023-2024

August 2023 Aug 1 Student Orientation Session 1 (8-11 AM) Session 2 (1-4 PM) February 2024
M Tu W Th F Aug 2 Student Orientation Session 3 (8-11 AM) Session 4 (1-4 PM) M Tu W Th F

1 2 3 4 Aug 3 Veteran Teachers Return 1 2
7 8 9 10 11 Aug 7 First Day of Fall Sports (Phyicals need to be turned in prior to practicing) 5 6 7 8 9

14 15 16 17 18 Aug 10 First Day of Class (Freshman Only) 12 13 14 15 16
21 22 23 24 25 Aug 10 MNHS Open House - 6:00-7:45 PM 19 20 21 22 23
28 29 30 31 Aug 11 Regular Schedule for all students including 0 & 8th Hours 26 27 28 29

Sep 4 NO SCHOOL - LABOR DAY
September 2023 Sep 5 NO SCHOOL - Professional Development/Teacher Work Day March 2024

M Tu W Th F Sep 9 ACT @ MNHS M Tu W Th F
1 Sep 12 College Night - 6:30-7:30 PM 1

4 5 6 7 8 Oct 7 Homecoming Dance - 7:30-10:30 PM 4 5 6 7 8
11 12 13 14 15 Oct 9 Parent Teacher Conferences Via Zoom 4:00-8:00 PM 11 12 13 14 15
18 19 20 21 22 Oct 10 Parent Teacher Conferences Via Zoom 4:00-8:00 PM 18 19 20 21 22
25 26 27 28 29 Oct 11 11th Grade Practice ACT/10th Grade AWA/PSAT (Registered Students Only) 25 26 27 28 29

Oct 11 NO SCHOOL - for 9th & 12th Grade
October 2023 Oct 12 NO SCHOOL - Teacher Work Day April 2024

M Tu W Th F Oct 13 NO SCHOOL - Teacher Comp Day M Tu W Th F
2 3 4 5 6 Oct 16 NO SCHOOL - Professional Development Day 1 2 3 4 5
9 10 11 12 13 Oct 21 ACT @ MNHS 8 9 10 11 12

16 17 18 19 20 Oct 26 Mock Interviews 15 16 17 18 19
23 24 25 26 27 Nov 6 NO SCHOOL - Professional Development/Teacher Work Day 22 23 24 25 26
30 31 Nov 22 First Year Teacher Workday 29 30

Nov 22-24 No School - Thanksgiving Break
November 2023 Dec 9 ACT @ MNHS May 2024

M Tu W Th F Dec 19 Final Exams period 1, 3, 5, 7 M Tu W Th F
1 2 3 Dec 20 Final Exams periods 2, 4, 6, 0/8 1 2 3

6 7 8 9 10 Dec. 21-Jan. 2 NO SCHOOL - Winter Break 6 7 8 9 10
13 14 15 16 17 Jan 3 NO SCHOOL - District Professional Day-Make-up Final Exams 8:00-3:30 13 14 15 16 17
20 21 22 23 24 Jan 4 Regular schedule resumes for all students including 0 & 8th hours 20 21 22 23 24
27 28 29 30 Jan 15 NO SCHOOL - MLK Day - Professional Development 27 28 29 30 31

Jan 22 8th Grade Orientation 5:30-7:30pm (Auditorium)
December 2023 Jan 25 8th Grade Orientation 5:30-7:30pm (Auditorium) June 2024

M Tu W Th F Jan 25 Registration Appt. Schedule periods 0, 1, 3, 5, 7, 8 M Tu W Th F
1 Jan 26 Registration Appt. Schedule periods 0, 2, 4, 6, MT, 8 3 4 5 6 7

4 5 6 7 8 Jan 30 IB Information/Application Night 5:30pm 10 11 12 13 14
11 12 13 14 15 Feb 10 ACT @ MNHS 17 18 19 20 21
18 19 20 21 22 Feb 16 NO SCHOOL - Professional Development/Teacher Work Day 24 25 26 27 28
25 26 27 28 29 Feb 19 No School - President's Day/First Year Teacher Work Day

Feb 20 IB/MYP/DP 2/4-year Plan Night 5:30 pm (Lecture Hall) July 2024
January 2024 Feb 22 IB/MYP/DP 2/4-year Plan Night 5:30 pm (Lecture Hall) M Tu W Th F

M Tu W Th F Feb 27 8th Grade Registration Nigh 5:30-7:30pm (Lecture Hall) 1 2 3 4 5
1 2 3 4 5 Mar 11 Parent Teacher Conferences Via Zoom 4:00-8:00 PM 8 9 10 11 12
8 9 10 11 12 Mar 12 Parent Teacher Conferences Via Zoom 4:00-8:00 PM 15 16 17 18 19

15 16 17 18 19 Mar 14 NO SCHOOL - Teacher Work Day 22 23 24 25 26
22 23 24 25 26 Mar 15 29 30 31
29 30 31 Mar 18

Mar 23
Mar 26
April 8-12
Apr 13

Color Codes Apr 18

NO SCHOOL - Teacher Comp Day
NO SCHOOL - Professional Development Day
Prom at Baxter Arena - 8:00-11:00 PM
11th Grade ACT/10th Grade PreACT - No School 9, 12 grades 
NO SCHOOL - Spring Break
ACT @ MNHS
IB Showcase Night

Holiday (No Students) Apr 25 Mock Interviews
Teacher Work Day - No Students May 9 Senior Honors Night 6:00-7:00 pm (Auditorium)
Teachers Work/District Profess. Day May 10 Senior Banquet
Teacher Comp Day May 17 Last Day for Seniors
District Holiday - Building Closed May 22 Finals (1,3,5,7) - School Dismisses at 12:30 - No Lunch Served

May 23 Finals (2,4,6,0/8) - School Dismisses at 12:30 - No Lunch Served
May 23 Last Day of School - 12:30 Dismissal
May 24 Graduation Rehearsal (10:00 AM) @ Baxter Arena - Report by 9:45 AM
May 25 Graduation Ceremony (1:00 PM) @ Baxter Arena - Report by Noon
May 29 Make-up Final Exams 8:00-3:30

Activities Calendar Revised - 5.18.23

59

https://mhsaaconference.org/public/genie/72/school/12/


16 19 19 18 14 19
M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F

1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 1 2 3 4 5
7 8 9 10 11 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 6 7 8 9 10 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12
14 15 16 17 18 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19
21 22 23 24 25 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 20 21 22 23 24 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26
28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 27 28 29 30 25 26 27 28 29 29 30 31

19 18 17 17
M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F

1 2 1 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5
5 6 7 8 9 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 6 7 8 9 10 10 11 12 13 14 8 9 10 11 12

12 13 14 15 16 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 13 14 15 16 17 17 18 19 20 21 15 16 17 18 19
19 20 21 22 23 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 20 21 22 23 24 24 25 26 27 28 22 23 24 25 26
26 27 28 29 25 26 27 28 29 29 30 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31

May. 25 Graduation @ UNO 5:00pm

ACT @ Millard South May. 23 Final Semester Grades Due
Advisement Conferences 4:00-8:00pm May. 24 Graduation Rehearsal @ UNO 11:00am
NO SCHOOL – Staff Dev AM, Teacher Work Day PM

Parent Teacher Conferences 4:00-8:00pm No School for Students Revised - 5.15.23

New Teacher Induction Work Day Jun. 8 ACT @ Millard South
Progress Grades Due
Spring Pep Rally

Oct. 12 NO SCHOOL – Teacher Work Day Feb. 19

Mar. 12
Mar. 12

Oct. 13 NO SCHOOL – Teacher Comp Day for Conferences Feb. 20
Oct. 16 NO SCHOOL – Staff Development
Oct. 17 Mid-Semester Grades Posted

May 22-23 Teacher Work/Student Intervention Time - 12:30-3:4

8th Grade Activity Fair May. 17 Seniors - Last Day of School
Extended PRIDE Time - All Week for Registration May 22-23 FINALS - 12:30 Dismissal. No Lunch Served
Progress Grades Due

Apr. 16 Progress Grades Due
Apr. 18 Extended PRIDE Time - Senior Meeting

NO SCHOOL – Professional Development/Workday

May. 14 Honors Night/Senior Art Show 7:00pm

Final Semester Grades Due May 6-17 Advanced Placement Exams
Semester Begins May. 7 Progress Grades Due
MLK Day – No school – Staff Development Day

NO SCHOOL – President’s Day May. 27 Memorial Day

Mar. 23
Mar. 26

First day of school – 9th grade only Nov. 28 Progress Grades Due Prom Dance – 8-11pm
First day of school – All grades Nov. 29 Winter Pep Rally 11th Grade ACT & 10th Grade Pre-ACT

Apr. 8-12 NO SCHOOL - Spring Break
Academic Letter Awards 7pm Dec. 19-20 First Semester Final Exams Apr. 5 Career Fair 

May. 3 College Decision Day - Counseling Center

O SCHOOL - WINTER BREAK: December 21st - January 3r

New Teacher Induction Work Day Mar. 18 NO SCHOOL – Staff Develoment
Open House 6:30-8:00pm Nov. 22-24 NO SCHOOL – Thanksgiving Break Mar. 19 Mid-Semester Grades Posted

Dec. 9 ACT @ Millard South Mar. 26 NO SCHOOL – 9th & 12th Grades

NO SCHOOL - Teacher Workday Mar. 14 NO SCHOOL – Teacher Work Day
Progress Grades Due Mar. 15 NO SCHOOL – Teacher Comp Day for Conferences

February 2024 March 2024 April 2024 May 2024 June 2024 July 2024

Jul. 24-28 Juniors College Planning Night 6:00pm

Nov. 7

Millard South High School Calendar 2023-2024
August 2023 September 2023 October 2023 November 2023 December 2023 January 2024

ACT @ Millard South Mar. 13

Oct. 11 Feb. 16
Feb. 19

Jan. 4
Jan. 15
Jan. 22
Jan 29 - Feb 2
Jan. 30
Feb. 10
Feb. 15

Sep. 23 Homecoming Dance 8-11pm
Sep. 26 Progress grades due
Oct. 3 Extended PRIDE Time: Senior Panoramic

Parent Teacher Conferences 4:00-8:00pm
10th Grade AWA & 11th Grade Practice ACT
NO SCHOOL – 9th & 12th Grades

Oct. 11 PSAT @ Millard South

Sep. 7 Extended PRIDE Time: Senior Meeting (Jostens) Jan. 3
Sep. 9 ACT @ Millard South
Sep. 20 Sophomore Health Screenings

Oct. 9-10
Oct. 11

Aug. 8
Aug. 10
Aug. 11
Aug. 23 Fall Pep Rally

Progress grades due Jan. 3

Sep. 4 NO SCHOOL – Labor Day
Sep. 5 NO SCHOOL – Professional Development/Workday
Sep. 6 Senior College Planning Information Night 6:00pm
Sep. 6

Aug. 28

New Student Registration Oct. 21
Jul. 31 New Teacher Induction Nov. 6

Student Orientation – Assigned by last name
All Certificated Staff – Fall Workshop

Aug. 1-2
Aug. 3-9 Nov. 22

60



MILLARD WEST HIGH SCHOOL COMPREHENSIVE CALENDAR 2023-2024

August 2023 Aug 7                   Back to School Process (8:00-12:00 and 1:00-3:00) February 2024
M Tu W Th F Aug 8                   Open House (6:00-7:00 pm) M Tu W Th F

1 2 3 4 Aug 10                 First day of classes - FRESHMEN ONLY 1 Even 2 All

7 8 9 10 All 11 All Aug 11                 First day of classes - ALL GRADES 5 Odd 6 Even 7 Odd 8 Even 9 All

14 Odd 15 Even 16 Odd 17 Even 18 All Aug 11                 Back to School Dance (7:00-9:00 pm) 12 Odd 13 Even 14 Odd 15 Even 16

21 Odd 22 Even 23 Odd 24 Even 25 All 19 20 Odd 21 Even 22 Odd 23 Even

28 Odd 29 Even 30 Odd 31 Even Sept 4                   No School - LABOR DAY 26 Odd 27 Even 28 Odd 29 Even

Sept 5                   No School for students - Professional Development Day 
Sept 9                   ACT at Millard West (Aug 4 deadline)

September 2023 Sept. 20-21           Mock Job Interviews March 2024
M Tu W Th F Sept. 28                Pre-Arranged Parent - Teacher Conferences (4:00-8:00) - Appt Only M Tu W Th F

1 All Sept. 29                Blood Drive 1 All

4 5 6 Odd 7 Even 8 All Sept 30                 Homecoming Dance (7:00-10:00) 4 Odd 5 Even 6 Odd 7 Even 8 All

11 Odd 12 Even 13 Odd 14 Even 15 All 11 Odd 12 Even 13 All 14 15

18 Odd 19 Even 20 Odd 21 Even 22 All Oct. 5                    Parent - Teacher Conferences (4:00-8:00) - In-Person 18 19 Odd 20 Even 21 Odd 22 Even

25 Odd 26 Even 27 Odd 28 Even 29 All Oct 11                   End of 1st Quarter - 10th & 11th Grade Testing 25 Odd 26 Test 27 Even 28 Odd 29 Even

Oct 12                   No School  - Teacher Work Day 
Oct 13                   No School - Teacher Comp Day

October 2023 Oct 16                   No School - Professional Learning Day April 2024
M Tu W Th F Oct 21                   ACT at Millard West (Sept 15 deadline) M Tu W Th F

2 Odd 3 Even 4 Odd 5 Even 6 All 1 Odd 2 Even 3 Odd 4 Even 5 All

9 Odd 10 Even 11 Test 12 13 Nov 6                    No School - AM - Professional Development / PM - Work Day 8 9 10 11 12

16 17 Odd 18 Even 19 Odd 20 Even Nov 22-24             No School - Thanksgiving Break 15 Odd 16 Even 17 Odd 18 Even 19 All

23 Odd 24 Even 25 Odd 26 Even 27 All 22 Odd 23 Even 24 Odd 25 Even 26 All

30 Odd 31 Even Dec 9                   ACT at Millard West (Nov. 3 deadline) 29 Odd 30 Even

Dec 20                 First Semester Ends 
Dec 21-Jan 3       No School - Winter Break

November 2023 May 2024
M Tu W Th F Jan 3                    No School - AM - Professional Development / PM - Work Day M Tu W Th F

1 Odd 2 Even 3 All Jan 4                    Second Semester Begins 1 Odd 2 Even 3 All

6 7 Odd 8 Even 9 Odd 10 Even Jan 11                  Incoming 9th Grade Night (6:30 - 8:00) 6 Odd 7 Even 8 Odd 9 Even 10 All

13 Odd 14 Even 15 Odd 16 Even 17 All Jan 15                  No School - Professional Development / Work Day 13 Odd 14 Even 15 Odd 16 Even 17 All

20 Odd 21 Even 22 23 24 20 Odd 21 Even 22 Odd 23 Even 24

27 Odd 28 Even 29 Odd 30 Even Feb 2                    Blood Drive 27 28 29 30 31

Feb.16                  No School  - AM - Professional Development / PM - Work Day
Feb 19                  No School - Veteran Staff Off Contract
Feb 29                  Advisement Conferences (4:00 - 8:00) - Appt. Only

December 2023 June 2024
M Tu W Th F Mar 5                      Parent-Teacher Conferences (4:00-8:00) - In Person M Tu W Th F

1 All Mar 13                    End of Third Quarter 3 4 5 6 7

4 Odd 5 Even 6 Odd 7 Even 8 All Mar 14                    No School - Work Day 10 11 12 13 14

11 Odd 12 Even 13 Odd 14 Even 15 All Mar 15                    No School - Teacher Comp Day 17 18 19 20 21

18 Odd 19 Even 20 All 21 22 Mar 18                    No School - Parent-Teacher Conferences / Professional Learning 24 25 26 27 28

25 26 27 28 29 Mar 26                    ACT/PreACT - No School 9, 12 grade

April 8 - 12              No School - Spring Break July 2024
January 2024 April 20                   Prom (7:30-10:00) M Tu W Th F

M Tu W Th F April 24-25              Mock Job Interviews 1 2 3 4 5

1 2 3 4 Odd 5 Even 8 9 10 11 12

8 Odd 9 Even 10 Odd 11 Even 12 All May 3                     Blood Drive 15 16 17 18 19

15 16 Odd 17 Even 18 Odd 19 Even May 12                   Senior Banquet 22 23 24 25 26

22 Odd 23 Even 24 Odd 25 Even 26 All May 13                   Senior Awards Breakfast 29 30 31

29 Odd 30 Even 31 Odd May 17                   Last Day for Seniors
May 19                   Black and Green Night (Hall of Fame Dinner)

Color Codes May 22                   Finals (1,3,5,7 Blocks) - School Dismisses at 12:30 

Holiday (No Students) May 23                   Finals (2,4,6,8 Blocks) - School Dismisses at 12:30 Daily Bell Schedule
Teachers only - no students May 23                   Last Day of School

Teacher Comp Day May 24                   Commencement Rehearsal (9:00 AM) @ Baxter Arena Activities Calendar
District Holiday May 25                   Graduation Commencement (9:00 AM) @ Baxter Arena

Professional Development Day May 27                   Memorial Day

61

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Nkh5kecdJ6-qCe8DcYLraha_T-87IQ42vObbHtdtGqo/edit
https://mhsaaconference.org/public/genie/72/school/13/


  Keith Lutz Horizon High School  
School Calendar  

2023-2024 

August 10    First Day for Students  
August 17    Open House  
September 4    No School – Labor Day  
September 5    No School - Professional Development/Work Day  
September 7   Parent Teacher Conferences, 4:00-8:00 pm, in person  
October 10    End of Term 1/Senior Recognition Ceremony – Early dismissal @ 12:15 pm 
October 11    AWA 10th/Practice ACT 11th - No school for 9th and 12th grade  
October 12-16   No School – Professional Development/Work Day/Comp Day  
October 17    Term 2 begins  
November 6    No School – Professional Development/Work Day 
November 16   Parent Teacher Conferences, 4:00-8:00 pm, in person  
November 22-24   No School - Thanksgiving Break  
December 20    End of Term 2 – Early dismissal @ 12:15 pm  
December 21-January 3  No School - Winter Break  
January 3    No School - Professional Development/Work Day  
January 4    Term 3 begins  
January 15    No School – Professional Development/Martin Luther King Jr. Day  
February 8    Parent Teacher Conferences, 4:00-8:00 pm, in person 
February 16    No School – Professional Development/Work Day 
February 19    No School – Presidents’ Day  
March 13   End of Term 3 – Early dismissal @ 12:15 pm  
March 14-18   No School – Professional Development/Work Day/Comp Day  
March 19   Term 4 begins  
March 26    PreACT 10th/ACT 11th - No school for 9th or 12th grade  
April 8-12   No School - Spring Break  
April 25    Parent Teacher Conferences, 4:00-8:00 pm, in person  
May 22    Senior Recognition Ceremony  – Early dismissal @ 12:15 pm  
May 23    Last Day of School– Early dismissal @ 12:30 pm  

Updated 05/15/2023 

62



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date: 

Background 

Description: 

Action Desired: 

Policy / 

Strategic Plan Reference: 

Responsible Person(s): 

Human Resources 

June 5, 2023 

Personnel Items: (1) Recommendation to Hire

Approval 

N/A

Dr Kevin Chick 
Associate Superintendent of Human Resources 

Superintendent’s Signature

63



June 5, 2023 
 

 
TEACHER RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 

 

Recommend: The following teachers be hired for the 2023-2024 school year: 
 

 

1. Mysti B. Schiessler – BA – Grand Canyon University.  Grade 2 teacher at Morton 
Elementary School for the 2023-2024 school year. Previous Experience: Omaha Public 
Schools (2020-2023) 

2. Nathan A. Alfson – MA – American College of Education, IN. Special Education teacher at 
Millard South High School for the 2023-2024 school year. Previous Experience: Sioux Falls, 
South Dakota (2019-2023); Pipestone, MN (2017-2019) 

3. Kimberly A. Loretta – MA – University of Nebraska, Kearney.  Special Education teacher at 
Horizon High School for the 2023-2024 school year. 

4. Erin A. Schlueter – MA – Peru State College.  Grade 1 teacher at Bryan Elementary School 
for the 2023-2024 school year. Previous Experience: Omaha Public Schools (2014-2023) 

5. Rachel R. Folkers – BA+18 – University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Kindergarten teacher at 
Bryan Elementary School for the 2023-2024 school year. Previous Experience: Omaha 
Public Schools (2020-2023) 

6. Sophia O. Furlong – BA – University of South Dakota.  Grade 2 teacher at Morton 
Elementary School for the 2023-2024 school year. Previous Experience: St. Bernadette 
Catholic School, NE (2021-2023) 

7. Sarah J. Kathol – Education Specialist – Fort Hays University. School Psychologist for 
Millard Public Schools. 

8. Maggie M. Stewart – MA+36 – University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Special Education teacher 
at Russell Middle School for the 2023-2024 school year. Previous Experience: ESU #3 
Brook Valley South (2022-2023), Millard Public Schools (2015-2022), Alpha School, 
Omaha (2010-2015) 

9. Barbara J. Rademacher – MA – University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Math teacher at Millard 
North High School for the 2023-2024 school year. Previous Experience: Omaha Public 
Schools (1992-2023) 

10. Samantha J. Kunkel – BA – University of Nebraska, Omaha. Grade 3 teacher at Ackerman 
Elementary for the 2023-2024 school year. 

11. Kylee K. Aerni – BA – University of Nebraska, Omaha. Grade 2 teacher at Reeder 
Elementary School for the 2023-2024 school year. Previous Experience: Omaha Public 
Schools (2021-2023) 

12. Jeffrey J. Hart – BA – Peru State College.  Grade 5 teacher at Montclair Elementary School 
for the 2023-2024 school year.  

13. Kayla M. Florom – BA+12 – University of Nebraska, Lincoln. Resource teacher at Neihardt 
Elementary School for the 2023-2023 school year. Previous Experience: Millard Public 
Schools (2019-2022), Lincoln Public Schools (2019) 

14. Alissa E. Kuehn Dykema – MA – University of Nebraska, Lincoln. Speech Language 
Pathologist for Millard Public Schools for the 2023-2024 school year. Previous Experience: 
Omaha Public Schools (2007-2023) 

64



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Enrollment Report (as of May 19, 2023)

Meeting Date: June 5, 2023

Background/
Description: Enrollment data will be pulled four times over the course of the school year reported to

the Millard Board of Education for public record. Enrollment data is stored in our
student information system, Synergy.

Action Desired: Information / Discussion

Policy /
Strategic Plan
Reference:

Responsible Person(s): Dr. Darin Kelberlau and Missy Manchester

Superintendent’s Signature:

65



May 19, 2023
Millard Public Schools

Total Enrollment

w/in SpEd

Option District Cluster Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
Elementary K 1 2 3 4 5 In Transfer Prgm Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Abbott (3 unit) 67 66 90 76 70 64 143 33 433 4 -1 434
Ackerman (4 unit) 72 67 88 79 95 78 36 89 479 7 10 469
Aldrich (3 unit) 67 68 70 68 88 76 114 88 437 0 0 437
Black Elk (4 unit) 94 102 94 97 99 115 26 141 601 -1 6 595
Bryan (3 unit) 52 61 52 64 59 49 23 43 337 0 -1 338
Cather (3 unit) 40 53 60 47 54 61 84 117 315 -5 -6 321
Cody (2 unit) 31 36 30 29 36 39 40 53 17 218 0 4 214
Cottonwood (3 unit) 50 47 52 52 66 63 46 23 16 346 -2 0 346
Disney (3 unit) 58 65 51 60 54 50 36 54 22 360 1 -5 365
Ezra Millard (3 unit) 82 83 88 69 70 87 262 12 479 -2 -4 483
Harvey Oaks (2 unit) 46 44 40 59 48 49 18 40 286 -1 -4 290
Hitchcock (2 unit) 27 36 49 38 42 45 51 57 237 -7 -7 244
Holling Heights (3 unit) 46 42 47 47 49 58 12 62 20 309 3 -1 310
Montclair (4 unit) 90 80 86 99 80 82 93 178 517 -6 11 506
Morton (3 unit) 55 77 59 67 51 52 26 31 16 377 4 5 372
Neihardt (4 unit) 71 85 74 82 76 80 20 62 468 -1 -3 471
Norris (3 unit) 66 68 64 67 64 58 38 95 387 1 11 376
Reagan (4 unit) 71 86 79 68 87 100 15 22 491 0 0 491
Reeder (4 unit) 70 76 85 65 88 94 13 28 478 2 -1 479
Rockwell (3 unit) 33 41 41 34 35 33 14 56 18 235 0 -1 236
Rohwer (3 unit) 63 70 72 83 91 72 19 35 13 464 1 11 453
Sandoz (3 unit) 47 51 49 37 61 49 22 55 294 2 -5 299
Upchurch (3 unit) 53 61 61 88 53 75 14 58 391 3 3 388
Wheeler (4 unit) 83 99 109 127 102 110 27 48 14 644 -1 3 641
Willowdale (3 unit) 69 96 80 91 77 74 10 61 487 -2 -5 492
Totals 1503 1660 1670 1693 1695 1713 1202 1541 136 10,070 0 20 10,050

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
Middle 6 7 8 Prgm* Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Andersen MS 296 302 311 55 77 0 909 0 1 908
Beadle MS 313 353 346 25 40 24 1012 -6 6 1012
Central MS 279 261 282 74 63 19 822 3 -3 822
Kiewit MS 311 317 310 293 53 1 938 -8 -8 954
North MS 258 258 253 185 199 17 769 -16 -4 789
Russell MS 275 237 265 41 199 0 777 1 -4 780
Totals 1732 1728 1767 673 631 61 5,227 -26 -12 5,265

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022

High Grads YTD 9 10 11 12 Prgm* Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

North HS 31 629 613 578 577 824 239 28 2397 -45 -61 2492
South HS 61 635 617 570 507 252 231 35 2329 -63 -102 2501
West HS 74 576 537 566 468 146 144 25 2147 -23 -72 2244
Horizon HS 45 2 11 59 45 16 13 0 117 -12 10 125
Totals 211 1842 1778 1773 1597 1238 627 88 6,990 -143 -225 7,362
*SpEd Program Included in MS/HS Grade Level totals Contracted SpEd 73 3 9 64

Rule 18 Interim 18 1 5 13
Young Adult Program & Project Search 65 -12 -6 71

**Itinerant, Contracted, & Home Visit Pre-K in Oct 1, 2022 Enrollment: 135 Ombudsman (Primary) 39 23 15 24

**Itinerant, Contracted, & Home Visit Pre-K in Current Enrollment: 198 Total District K-12 22,482 -153 -357 22,839
Preschool SpEd Total Total District PreK-12** 23,453 -62 -220 23,673
Bryan 11 21 32 32
Cody 45 35 80 77
Disney 5 10 15 16  Elementary Elementary 10,050

Harvey Oaks 31 14 45 44 Middle School 5,227 Middle School 5,265

Holling Heights 5 10 15 13 High School 6,990 High School 7,362

Montclair Montessori 10 72 82 78 Contracted & Rule 18 91 Contracted & Rule 18 77

Neihardt 28 28 56 57 Young Adult 65 Young Adult 71

Norris 8 8 16 15 Ombudsman (Primary) 39 Ombudsman (Primary) 14

Norris Montessori 0 23 23 24   TOTAL 22,482   TOTAL 22,839

Reagan 23 23 46 45
Reeder (Wheeler) 27 18 45 41
Rockwell 31 37 68 67
Sandoz 16 21 37 38
Homebased Infants 201 11 212 152
TOTAL 699

Career Academies NHS SHS WHS HHS TOTAL

Education 7 12 11 30

Entrepreneurship 8 7 26 41
Health Sciences 24 21 67 112
Dist/Log Mgmt 10 1 8 19
STEM 4 2 19 25
Ombudsman  (Primary and Secondary Assignment) 42

5/19/2023 10/1/2022

10,070

Not SpEd

772

Oct 01, 2022

22,957 22,880 22,839
22,635 22,482

19000
19500
20000
20500
21000
21500
22000
22500
23000
23500

Oct '21 Aug '22 Oct '22 Jan '23 May '23

K-12 Enrollment 2022-2023

66



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022 Size w/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment SpEd

Abbott 21 20 23 25 24 21
22 23 22 25 24 22
24 23 22 26 22 21

23
Total Students 67 66 90 76 70 64 433 4 -1 434 433
Total Teachers 3 3 4 3 3 3 19 19
Classroom Avg 22.3 22.0 22.5 25.5 23.3 21.3 22.8 22.8

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Ackerman 24 22 22 26 24 20
24 23 22 27 23 20
24 22 22 26 24 19

22 24 19

Total Students 72 67 88 79 95 78 479 7 10 469 479
Total Teachers 3 3 4 3 4 4 21 21
Classroom Avg 24.0 22.3 22.0 26.3 23.8 19.5 22.8 22.8

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Aldrich 23 23 23 24 23 25
22 23 23 22 20 25
22 22 24 22 22 26

23
Total Students 67 68 70 68 88 76 437 0 0 437 437
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 4 3 19 19
Classroom Avg 22.3 22.7 23.5 22.7 22.0 25.3 23.0 23.0

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Black Elk 22 25 23 24 25 24
25 26 23 25 25 23
23 26 24 24 25 22
24 25 24 24 24 24

22
Total Students 94 102 94 97 99 115 601 -1 6 595 601
Total Teachers 4 4 4 4 4 5 25 25
Classroom Avg 23.5 25.5 23.5 24.3 24.8 23.0 24.0 24.0

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Bryan 17 20 17 21 20 17
17 21 18 21 20 16
18 20 17 22 19 16

Total Students 52 61 52 64 59 49 337 0 -1 338 337
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18
Classroom Avg 17.3 20.3 17.3 21.3 19.7 16.3 18.7 18.7

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 C-K C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 C-5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Cather 13 17 21 15 17 21
14 18 19 16 19 20
13 18 20 16 18 20

Total Students 40 53 60 47 54 61 315 -5 -6 321 315
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18
Classroom Avg 13.3 17.7 20.0 15.7 18.0 20.3 17.5 17.5

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Cody 16 18 17 15 18 19 8
15 18 13 14 18 20 9

Total Students 31 36 30 29 36 39 17 218 0 4 214 201
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 14 12
Classroom Avg 15.5 18.0 15.0 14.5 18.0 19.5 8.5 15.6 16.8

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Cottonwood 26 23 16 25 21 22 8
24 24 18 27 23 19 8

18 22 22

Total Students 50 47 52 52 66 63 16 346 -2 0 346 330
Total Teachers 2 2 3 2 3 3 2 17 15
Classroom Avg 25.0 23.5 17.3 26.0 22.0 21.0 8.0 20.4 22.0

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 C-K C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 C-5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Disney 20 23 18 22 17 15 18 18 17 17 18 20 7
20 24 16 21 19 15 7

8

Total Students 40 47 34 43 36 30 18 18 17 17 18 20 22 360 1 -5 365 338
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 3 21 18
Classroom Avg 20.0 23.5 17.0 21.5 18.0 15.0 18.0 18.0 17.0 17.0 18.0 20.0 7.3 17.1 18.8

67



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022 Size w/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment SpEd

Ezra Millard 21 21 22 24 23 22
21 21 23 23 23 21
21 21 20 22 24 22
19 20 23 22

Total Students 82 83 88 69 70 87 479 -2 -4 483 479
Total Teachers 4 4 4 3 3 4 22 22
Classroom Avg 20.5 20.8 22.0 23.0 23.3 21.8 21.8 21.8

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Harvey Oaks 23 22 20 18 24 24
23 22 20 20 24 25

21
Total Students 46 44 40 59 48 49 286 -1 -4 290 286
Total Teachers 2 2 2 3 2 2 13 13
Classroom Avg 23.0 22.0 20.0 19.7 24.0 24.5 22.0 22.0

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Hitchcock 13 18 17 19 20 22
14 18 16 19 22 23

16

Total Students 27 36 49 38 42 45 237 -7 -7 244 237
Total Teachers 2 2 3 2 2 2 13 13
Classroom Avg 13.5 18.0 16.3 19.0 21.0 22.5 18.2 18.2

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Holling Heights 14 13 18 16 19 19 10
16 14 17 15 15 20 10
16 15 12 16 15 19

Total Students 46 42 47 47 49 58 20 309 3 -1 310 289
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18
Classroom Avg 15.3 14.0 15.7 15.7 16.3 19.3 17.2 16.1

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Montclair 22 17 20 27 16 25 15 24 19
23 15 19 27 20 23 15 23 19

15 24 20
24 20
23
22

Total Students 45 32 39 54 36 48 45 140 78 517 -5 11 506 517
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 6 4 25 25
Classroom Avg 22.5 16.0 19.5 27.0 18.0 24.0 15.0 23.3 19.5 20.7 20.7

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Morton 18 26 20 22 26 18 8
19 26 20 23 25 17 8
18 25 19 22 17

Total Students 55 77 59 67 51 52 16 377 4 5 372 361
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 2 3 17 17
Classroom Avg 18.3 25.7 19.7 22.3 25.5 17.3 22.2 21.2

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Neihardt 19 21 18 20 20 21
17 21 19 21 19 21
17 22 19 21 20 18
18 21 18 20 17 20

Total Students 71 85 74 82 76 80 468 -1 -3 471 468
Total Teachers 4 4 4 4 4 4 24 24
Classroom Avg 17.8 21.3 18.5 20.5 19.0 20.0 19.5 19.5

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Norris 25 22 23 22 21 21 9 23 19
24 22 21 22 20 20 8 23 21

21

Total Students 49 44 44 44 41 41 17 67 40 387 1 11 376 387
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 19 19
Classroom Avg 24.5 22.0 22.0 22.0 20.5 20.5 8.5 22.3 20.0 20.4 20.4

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Reagan 18 22 20 21 22 24
18 21 19 23 22 26
17 21 20 24 22 24
18 22 20 21 26

Total Students 71 86 79 68 87 100 491 0 0 491 491
Total Teachers 4 4 4 3 4 4 23 23
Classroom Avg 17.8 21.5 19.8 22.7 21.8 25.0 21.3 21.3

68



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022 Size w/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment SpEd

Reeder 17 19 21 21 22 24
17 19 22 21 22 23
18 18 21 23 22 23
18 20 21 22 24

Total Students 70 76 85 65 88 94 478 2 -1 479 478
Total Teachers 4 4 4 3 4 4 23 23
Classroom Avg 17.5 19.0 21.3 21.7 22.0 23.5 20.8 20.8

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Rockwell 16 21 22 18 17 17 9
17 20 19 16 18 16 9

Total Students 33 41 41 34 35 33 18 235 0 -1 236 217
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 14 12
Classroom Avg 16.5 20.5 20.5 17.0 17.5 16.5 9.0 16.8 18.1

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Rohwer 21 24 24 21 23 25 6
21 23 24 20 23 23 7
21 23 24 21 22 24

21 23

Total Students 63 70 72 83 91 72 13 464 1 11 453 451
Total Teachers 3 3 3 4 4 3 2 22 20
Classroom Avg 21.0 23.3 24.0 20.8 22.8 24.0 6.5 21.1 22.6

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Sandoz 15 17 15 14 21 17
16 17 17 11 20 16
16 17 17 12 20 16

Total Students 47 51 49 37 61 49 294 2 -5 299 294
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18
Classroom Avg 15.7 17.0 16.3 12.3 20.3 16.3 16.3 16.3

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Upchurch 18 20 20 23 19 18
18 21 20 21 17 19
17 20 21 22 17 20

22 18

Total Students 53 61 61 88 53 75 391 3 3 388 391
Total Teachers 3 3 3 4 3 4 20 20
Classroom Avg 17.7 20.3 20.3 22.0 17.7 18.8 19.6 19.6

SpEd Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Wheeler 22 26 23 25 26 23 7
22 25 23 25 25 21 7
18 24 20 27 25 22
21 24 22 25 26 22

21 25 22

Total Students 83 99 109 127 102 110 14 644 -5 3 641 630
Total Teachers 4 4 5 5 4 5 2 29 27
Classroom Avg 20.8 24.8 21.8 25.4 25.5 22.0 7.0 22.2 23.3

Current Current Change Oct 01, 2022
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change since Oct 1 Enrollment

Willowdale 23 24 18 23 26 25
23 24 20 22 24 24
23 24 21 24 27 25

24 21 22
Total Students 69 96 80 91 77 74 487 -2 -5 492 487
Total Teachers 3 4 4 4 3 3 21 21
Classroom Avg 23.0 24.0 20.0 22.8 25.7 24.7 23.2 23.2

69



 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

  

 

Food Services 
Executive Summary 

 

 
 July 2022 – March 2023 

 

 

70



 

 

 

2 

 

School Year Participation 
Below is a summary of daily meals served at each of the grade levels for the months of 
August 2022 through March 2023 compared to August 2020 through March 2021 & 
August 2018 through March 2019. 
 
Elementary Participation 
 

Elementary Breakfast Participation 
 

School 

2018/2019 Daily 
Meals 

2018/2019 Daily 
Meals Variation   

2021/2022 Daily 
Meals 

2021/2022 Daily 
Meals Variation 

 2022/2023 Daily 
Meals 

Abbott 61  (12)   55  (6)   49  

Ackerman 136  (39)   151  (54)   97  

Aldrich 49  20    103  (34)   69  

Black Elk 101  35    212  (76)   136  

Bryan 108  41    194  (45)   149  

Cather 50  4    89  (35)   54  

Cody 87  (7)   114  (34)  81  

Cottonwood 75  20    105  (10)   95  

Disney 165  (46)   171  (52)   119  

Ezra 134  (58)   220  (143)   77  

Harvey Oaks 64  9    120  (46)   74  

Hitchcock 30  10    33  7    40  

Holling 190  (4)   216  (30)   186  

Montclair 170  (26)   209  (64)   144  

Morton 57  18    80  (6)   75  

Neihardt 109  (18)   257  (166)   91  

Norris 130  (24)   151  (44)   106  

Reagan 122  (35)   109  (22)   87  

Reeder 88  (32)   68  (13)   56  

Rockwell 71  10    96  (15)   81  

Rohwer 61  (11)   46  5   50  

Sandoz 174  (65)   152  (43)   109  

Upchurch 113  (15)   149  (50)   98  

Wheeler 67  11    95  (17)  78  

Willowdale 62  3    90  (25)   65  

Elementary 2,475  (211)   3,283  (1,019)   2,264  

 

71



 

 

 

3 

 

 
 

 
Elementary Lunch Participation 

 

School 

2018/2019    
Daily Meals 

2018/2019    
Daily Meals 

Variation 
  

2021/2022 Daily 
Meals 

2021/2022 Daily 
Meals Variation 

 2022/2023 Daily 
Meals 

Abbott 296  (24)   309  (37)   272  

Ackerman 316  (28)   335  (47)   288  

Aldrich 242  6    276  (28)   248  

Black Elk 324  41    390  (25)   365  

Bryan 253  2   290  (35)   255  

Cather 177  (23)   213  (59)   154  

Cody 176  (18)   184  (26)   158  

Cottonwood 201  7   228  (20)   208  

Disney 247  (28)   268  (49)   219  

Ezra 307  13    344  (25)   320  

Harvey Oaks 166  22    214  (26)   188  

Hitchcock 156  4    172  (12)  160  

Holling 282  (33)   284  (34)   250  

Montclair 391  (44)   408  (61)   347  

Morton 198  39    264  (27)   237  

Neihardt 372  (74)   373  (75)   298  

Norris 253  24    296  (20)   277  

Reagan 373  (68)   351  (46)   305  

Reeder 340  (95)  284  (39)  245  

Rockwell 190  (20)   187  (17)   170  

Rohwer 269  29    326  (28)   298  

Sandoz 278  (77)   247  (46)   201  

Upchurch 302  (43)   310  (50)   259  

Wheeler 308  34   376  (34)  342  

Willowdale 285  19    370  (66)   304  

Elementary 6,703  (336)  7,300  (933)   6,367  

 
 

72



 

 

 

4 

 

 

Middle School Participation 
 

Middle School Breakfast Participation 
 

 

2018/2019 Daily 
Meals 

2018/2019 Daily 
Meals Variation   

2021/2022 Daily 
Meals 

2021/2022 Daily 
Meals Variation 

 2022/2023 Daily 
Meals 

Andersen 72  45    197  (80)   117  

Beadle 15  33    129  (81)   48  

Central 242  (24)   344  (126)   218  

Kiewit 47  17    125  (61)   64  

North 68  45    150  (36)   114  

Russell 23  20    70  (27)   44  

Middle 467  138    1,016  (411)   605  

 
Middle School Lunch Participation 

 

 

2018/2019    
Daily Meals 

2018/2019    
Daily Meals 

Variation 
  

2021/2022 Daily 
Meals 

2021/2022 Daily 
Meals Variation 

 2022/2023 Daily 
Meals 

Andersen 603  (54)   645  (96)   550  

Beadle 514  130    703  (59)  644  

Central 642  (84)   632  (74)   558  

Kiewit 585  (25)   645  (85)   561  

North 474  (31)   545  (102)   442  

Russell 464  44    538  (30)   508  

Middle 3,282  (19)   3,708  (445)  3,263  

 
Middle School A la Carte 

 

 

20218/2019       
Daily a la Carte 

2018/2019          
Daily a la Carte 

Variation 
  

2021/2022          
Daily a la Carte 

2021/2022          
Daily a la Carte 

Variation 
  

2022/2023            
Daily a la Carte 

Andersen $405.17  $144.57    $577.09  ($27.34)   $549.74  

Beadle $605.60  $289.95    $939.75  ($44.20)   $895.54  

Central $338.82  ($99.42)  $128.51  $110.89    $239.40  

Kiewit $598.99  ($137.95)   $539.90  ($78.85)   $461.04  

North $384.80  $63.77    $564.30  ($115.73)   $448.57  

Russell $452.19  ($10.99)  $500.13  ($58.93)   $441.20  

Middle $2,785.58  $249.93    $3,249.67  ($214.16)   $3,035.51  

73



 

 

 

5 

 

 
 

High School Participation 
 

High School Breakfast 
 

 

2018/2019 Daily 
Meals 

2018/2019 Daily 
Meals Variation   

2021/2022 Daily 
Meals 

2021/2022 Daily 
Meals Variation 

 2022/2023 Daily 
Meals 

North 143  (36)   210  (103)   107  

South 166  4    211  (42)   169  

West 44  36    342  (262)   81  

Horizon 40  10    49  1    50  

High 393  14    812  (405)   407  

 
 

High School Lunch 
 

 

2018/2019    Daily 
Meals 

2018/2019    Daily 
Meals Variation   

2021/2022 Daily 
Meals 

2021/2022 Daily 
Meals Variation 

 2022/2023 Daily 
Meals 

North 895  (24)   1,101  (229)  872  

South 1,086  89    1,229  (54)   1,175  

West 754  96    985  (136)   849  

Horizon 64  (10)   40  14    54  

High 2,799  151    3,355  (405)   2,950  

 
 

High School A La Carte 
 

 

20218/2019       
Daily a la Carte 

2018/2019          
Daily a la Carte 

Variation 
  

2021/2022          
Daily a la Carte 

2021/2022          
Daily a la Carte 

Variation 
  

2022/2023            
Daily a la Carte 

North $3,250.56  ($1,159.99)   $1,294.64  $795.93    $2,090.57  

South $2,469.73  ($980.65)   $1,059.49  $429.59    $1,489.08  

West $3,408.89  ($1,310.70)   $2,164.96  ($66.77)   $2,098.20  

Horizon $98.69  ($32.79)   $44.78  $21.12    $65.90  

High $9,227.87  ($3,484.12)   $4,563.87  $1,179.88    $5,743.75  

 

74



 

 

 

6 

 

 
Engagement and Innovations 
 
 
C Store Opening (NHS & SHS) 
Much to the student’s excitement Millard South and 
Millard North were able to re-open their c-store 
spaces.  Students are able to purchase additional 
snacks and beverages to accompany their lunch. 
 
Themed Meals 
Throughout the school year Food Service hosts a 
series of themed menu days based on season or 
current events.  Below is a sample of events that 
were hosted: 

• Halloween- Fall Cookie 

• Thanksgiving- Full Thanksgiving Dinner served at all schools 

• Super Bowl- Tailgate menu at the High schools 

• Pizza Party- @MNHS for Dance Team 

• Valentine’s Day Dessert- Special Jell-O treats and Cookies 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

75

https://www.instagram.com/reel/CoTUKJDMx0E/?utm_source=ig_web_button_share_sheet


 

 

 

7 

 

Future Chefs 

 
Future Chef Video 

Future Chefs has returned to Millard with a live competition on March 9th with 25 Fourth 
& Fifth grade student Chefs!  All 4th & 5th grade students were invited to submit a recipe 
for their favorite fruit or vegetable side dish.  The event allows students to showcase 
their creativity while learning about healthy eating habits and cooking techniques.  Chef 
Mikayla Bautista from Abbott won the event with her creation of Shrimp and Orange 
Lettuce Wraps. 
 
 

 
 
 
Summer Feeding 2023 
From June 5th – July 28th, Food Service will be hosting Open Summer Food Service 
Program sites at 7 locations.  The USDA program allows Millard to offer free meals to 
anyone between the ages of 1-18 at qualified school locations.  Participants do not have 
to pre-register and no paperwork is required. Meals will be available Monday through 
Friday at the below locations: 

• Millard North High School 

• Central Middle School 

• Millard North Middle School 

• Bryan Elementary 

• Cody Elementary 

• Holling Heights Elementary 

• Neihardt Elementary 

 

76

https://youtu.be/jLRtnyficnE


 

 

 

8 

 

 
Food Service Statistics and Financials 

 

 

July –  
September  

October –  
December 

January 
– March   

April – 
June 

 

Year-to-
Date     

(thru March 
‘23) 

Total training Hours--
2022/2023 

1,366.89 605.50 341.25  2,313.64 

Total training Hours--
2021/2022 

1,202.85 815.25 564.50 320.50 
 

2,903.10 
 

Total training Hours--
2020/2021 

1,572.75 462.25 
 

517.25 717.00 
 

3,269.25 
 

Total training Hours--
2019/2020 

1,541.00 486.00 381.00 173.00 2,581.00 

Total Training Hours –  
2018/2019 

1,315.00 401.00 556.75 
 

532.00 2,804.75 
 

Total Training Hours –  
2017/2018 

1,798.00 477.00 476.50 691.50 3,443.00 

Total Training Hours – 
2016/2017 

2,186.60 716.00 638.00 
 

803.00 
 

4,343.60 

Total Training Hours – 
2015/2016 

1,735.00 717.75 421.25 
 

446.00 
 

3,320.00 

Total Training Hours – 
2014/2015 

1,320.00 782.50 684.25 566.00 3,352.75 

Total Training Hours – 
2013/2014 

1,690.50 735.50 859.00 653.00 3,954.00 

Total Training Hours – 
2012/2013 

1,542.00 565.00 661.00 616.00 3,384.00 

Total Training Hours – 
2011/2012 

1,625.00 726.75 1,783.25 624.50 4,759.50 

Total Training Hours – 
2010/2011 

1,617.50 760.25 584.00 399.00 3,360.75 

Total Training Hours – 
2009/2010 

1,080.50 687.75 558.00 489.75 2,816.00 

Total Training Hours – 
2008/2009 

1,491.50 351.50 496.50 1,016.50 3,356.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77



 

 

 

9 

 

 

 
FY ‘23 YTD Actuals 

(Contract Year 2023)  
 

Millard Revenue 
  

Cash Sales 
  

 
Breakfast Cash $ 195,532.57  
Lunch Cash $ 3,744,80.42  
Student A La Carte $ 1,235,463.00  

 Adult A La carte $ 31,553.40 

 Spark $ 165,991.89  
Vending $ 2,807.85   
Brook Valley $ 30,318.66   
Heartland $ 18,211.78  

 Over/Short $17,082.24 

Reimbursements 
  

 
Federal Breakfast $ 703,368.90   
Federal Lunch $ 3,481,180.92   
State Breakfast $ 10,986.57   
State Lunch $ 0.00   
CACFP  $ 36,986.57  

 Grants $407,938.74  
  

   

   

 

                        Total Year to Date Excess/Deficit   $1,237,147.57 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

78



 

 

 

10 

 

 
 
 
Below is a summary of the Free and Reduced students currently enrolled at Millard 
Public Schools, along with the percentage as it relates to total enrollment.   
 

 Free & 
Reduced 

Percentage 
2022-2023 28.2% 

2021-2022 23.8% 

2020-2021 26.0% 

2019-2020 25.0% 

2018-2019 23.5% 

2017-2018 22.7% 

2016-2017 21.3% 

2015-2016 17.7% 

2014-2015 17.8% 

2013-2014  18.9% 

2012-2013  18.6% 

2011-2012  18.6% 

2010- 2011  16.6% 

2009-2010  14.2% 

2008-2009  11.3% 

 

 

79




